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CORPORATE PROFILE
nal@n

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands under the Company law, Chapter 22 (law 3 of
1961,

Company's domicile was changed to Bermuda by way of de-

as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The

registration in the Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda on 10 August 2016 (Bermuda
fime]. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 18 March 2011.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) are principally
engaged in the production and sales of marble slags and trading
of marble slabs in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC" or
"China”). The Group is a mining operator, focusing on the mining of
marble slags, and owns the largest beige marble mine, in China (in
terms of marble reserves based on the certification issued by China
Stone Material Association (R Bl A #1#3& ) in August 2010,
namely Zhangjiaba Mine, which is located in Zhenjiang Village,
Xiangshui County, Jiangyou City of Sichuan Province, China. The
first mining permit of Zhangjiaba Mine expired on 21 February
2021. The renewed mining permit was issued on 7 March 2022
and is valid from 21 February 2021 to 21 February 2026.

In December 2021, the Company commenced a franchise business
in relafion to a “new mode of food and beverage consumption”,
which involved preparing and delivering food from virtual restaurant
brands for distribution to customers in the United Kingdom. Some
virtual restaurant brands in the food service industry involves a
delivery-only operation. The Group has created an online webpage
for this business which is hosted by a third party food delivery
platform with food of its own brand being prepared either out of its
kitchen or out of an existing franchised restaurant. The Group has
also built @ webpage to take orders for the ready-fo-cook meal kits
for its own branded food and the selected signature dishes with
other allied restaurants. The website of the virtual restaurant brands
(www.celeplate.co.uk] was launched in August 2022. Since late
2022, the Group has set to sell the ready-to-cook meal kits to some
refailers and shops as offline distribution channel. The Group has
been developing a clickand-mortar strategy fo sell through online
and offline channels.

HEESAREZERERAF
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RESOURCES AND RESERVES

According to the competent person's report dated 7 March
2011, the Zhangjiaba Mine contains 44.2 million cubic mefers
of measured and indicated marble resources. The block rate is
expected fo be 38% on the marble resources, which is equivalent
to an estimated 16.8 million cubic meters of proved and probable
marble reserves.

The resources and reserves estimates for marble stones of
Zhangjiaba Mine in Sichuan Province as at 31 December 2022
under JORC Code (as defined in Chapter 18 of the Llisting Rules)

are set out in the following table:

R At

RIFAB A0 1FIA7EMAEHRA LR
% SRR B MWL E44,200,00037 J5 K & 7 8
REFAEEEAR - RERARNTH KA
H/338% TAFH A E 10 16,800,0003Z 75 K #y
BERHMBARAHE:

R2022F12A31BREJORCER (EE R
EWRAFI8E) A E M E KK T &L
BAAREARERLFEEEHIIN TX:

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

JORC Resource and Reserve Class Cubic meter Cubic meter
JORCERKFEEHI hyAy s S S K
Measured Resource HEAER 12.29 million B8 13.35 million B &
Indicated Resource HEER 22.18 million B & 24.09 million & &
Total Resource BwER 34.47 million B & 37.44 million B &
Proved Reserve BERE 4.38 million BB 4.76 million & &
Probable Reserve BIRE = 7.91 millionB 8 8.59 million B &
Total Reserve EREs 12.29 million B& 13.35 million & &

Note:

The remaining resources and reserves for marble stones of Zhangjiaba Mine for each
year were estimated based on the independent competent person’s report dated on 7
March 2011 (as shown in the Company’s Prospectus) and adjustment for any changes
in the resources and reserves esftimates for each year due to mining consumption and
exploration activities that was confirmed by the Company’s internal expert. There were
no material changes to these reported estimates from 7 March 2011 to 31 December

2022.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FREHRS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the "Board” or “Directors”] of
China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results

of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 ("FY2022").

FINAL RESULTS

For FY2022, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB72.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 2.6%,
as compared to approximately RMB74.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 ("FY2021") and the Group recorded gross
profit of approximately RMB26.8 million, representing an increase
of approximately 76.2%, as compared to approximately RMB15.2
million for FY2021.

Net loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB61.9 million for FY2022, representing an increase of
approximately 22.9%, as compared fo net loss of approximately
RMB50.3 million aftributable to owners of the Company for
FY2021. Basic loss per share for FY2022 was approximately
RMB43.7 cents, representing an increase of approximately 22.8%,
as compared to restated basic loss of approximately RMB35.6
cents per share for FY2021.

BUSINESS REVIEWS AND PROSPECTS

In the end of year 2022, there is the good news to the Company
that China decided to abandon its strict zero-Covid policy which
made a clear road map to normality. The lifting of its Covid-19
restrictions could provide the impetus for renewed growth in China.
The Company believes that China’s economy will see a robust
improvement and resilience in the forthcoming years. However,
China is sfill facing a daunfing challenge to the worsening US-
China relations and the risk of global recession, which may have
put a strain on China’s economic recovery and resulted in growth
softening. The Group's marble slag business continved to achieve
a positive sales growth amid China's economic uncertainty and
disarray brought by Covid-19 pandemic. Sales of marble slags
grew by 22.0% from approximately RMB58.6 million for FY202]1
to approximately RMB71.6 million for FY2022 and gross profit
margin of marble slag business improved from 24.3% to 37.6%,
primarily due to the improvement of its sales price. Demand of
marble slag was in a strong rebound during the last quarter of year
2022. Mable slags are widely used in production of various daily
products. China’s fully recovery of economic activities, increase
consumption and the pickup of the manufacturing sector will be
good factors for the continued growth in the Group’s marble slag
business. The Company believes the outlook of marble slag business
could stay positive.

HE S AREERARA T
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FFEERes

The Group owns rich and exiractable marble resource in the
Zhangjiaba Mine, which give it a competitive advantage to
develop the ground calcium carbonate business. The Company
was finding o way to embark a full developed GCC business in
order fo materialise the vertical diversification plan. The Company
will confinue fo look for cooperation partners to roll out the GCC
business. Given the negative investment sentiment for the business
expansion in year 2022, the Company did not make any promising
proposals with the potential business partners. However, the
Company believes that, following China's reopening and lifting
most of pandemic restriction, the investor and other GCC operators
would gradually re-gain its confidence and fueled optimism over the
further investment and expansion.

Property and construction industry may be one of some Covid-
battered industries which has yet to benefit from China’s reopening.
China government has rolled out a series of support measure which
are aimed at helping property developers expand their financing
channel and improving their capability to repay debts. However, it
was hard fo see the signs of market recovery and reviving demand.
Marble slabs are mainly used in inferior and exterior decoration.
The business growth in marble slabs would become very difficult in
near future when many property developers were struggling through
tough times amid industry downturn. During the past few years, it
was a tough times for the Group to expand the customer base and
the existing customers have faced pressure to repay their invoices.
The Group would stay out of marble slab business for the time being
amid China’s property industry in turmoil until it obviously refurns to
be stable and recovered.

8  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FFEERes

The Company tapped info the food service business in the United
Kingdom since December 2021. Many industries have been hit hard
by the Covid-19 pandemic, however, the online restaurant services
have benefit from it. The pandemic and lockdowns have posed a
change in consumer behaviors for dining in the restaurants. It leads
to explosive growth in the business chain of food delivery. Initially,
the Group commence to operate a franchise food business which
involves preparing and delivery food from virtual restaurant brands
for distribution to customers by either a delivery-only operation of
making food out of a central kitchen or a separate brand with food
being prepared out of an existing third-party franchise restaurant.
During FY2022, the Group successfully roll out the own website of
the Group's virtual restaurant (www.celeplate.co.uk|. Since then, the
Group has pivoted towards to take orders from the Group’s own
website instead of third-party delivery platform. Currently, the Group
prepares ready-to-cook meal kits in the Group's own central kitchen
and directly sells them to the customers through the own website
and also sells them to the refailing stores and supermarkets as new
distributional channel. The Group was no longer to go through the
cooking process by the third-party franchise restaurants. The Group
was to provide various couniry’s food and cuisine with different
restaurant brands, in which two of them belong fo the Group itself,
such as Burgogi (Korean cuisine) and Ya #5 2 (Chinese cuisine). The
Group would continue to optimise the menu and improve efficiencies
and profits. The Company believes that virtual kitchen will be the
future of catering sector and its growth potential is huge.

The Company saw light at the end of the tunnel when the lifting of
pandemic measures came in China. The Company believes that
China's overall economy would undergo a meaningful recovery in
forthcoming years. However, China sfill has to overcome headwinds
from geopolitical tensions and slowing global economy. The
Company will continue to maintain a high degree of vigilance
against unpredictable international developments and sensitive
external factors that could adversely affect the Group's business. The
Group will continue fo consolidate the production and operations
of the mining business and extend the customer base to improve
its business performance. On the other hand, the Group will also
continue to explore new business opportunities so arising in order fo
maximise shareholders’ value in the future.

HEESAREZERERAF
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APPRECIATION Jek it

I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude AN AFEUEERLRHF2ERRE TP RE
to all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for MEBFEH BRABSEAEENRRENE 7
their attention and support to the Group in the difficult times. | would EH X BAARE - RATFEHAEBD
also like to thank our directors, management team and all staff of ZE % - & 12 BGheERETIEBE—FH
the Group for their dedication and hard work to the Group for the B BRI R % 17 °

past year.

Zheng Yonghui HITEE

Executive Director R ok &

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023 &% 2023F3A28H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRE51sRI S i

BUSINESS REVIEW

Marble Slag and Calcium Carbonate Business

Marble slags are produced in the course of stripping overburden at
Zhangjiaba mine in the PRC and by crushing the cracked marble
stones. Marble slag is a core raw material for the production
of ground calcium carbonate ("“GCC"), which is widely used in
production of many daily products, such as construction materials,
paper, plastic, paints, efc. The Group sells the marble slags to the
GCC manufacturers which are close to the Zhangjiaba mine.

China's economy has slowly recovered and momentum picked
up during the year ended 31 December 2022 ("FY2022"). The
Company believes the liffing of pandemic restrictions would drive
the growth of China’s economy. Demand of marble slags showed
a weakening sign during the first half year of 2022 but it was in
a sfrong rebound in the last quarter of 2022. During FY2022, the
sales volume of marble slag increased by 6.4% from approximately
2.6 million tons to approximately 2.8 million tons and average
selling price increase by 14.5% from RMB22.7 per fon to RMB26.0
per ton. The Group believes that the recovery of domestic demand
in China was conducive to sustaining the continued growth of
marble slag business.

Marble Slab Business

Marble stones are widely used in consfruction and decoration
industry for decorative purposes due to its bright colour and lustrous
finish. Marble slabs are used in interior and exterior decorations,
laying pavements, stairs, flooring and furniture. The Group sells
marble slabs through some distributors or purchasing agents which
have sfrong frack records and broad sales and marketing networks
with the property developers and construction companies in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &IRIE51smb il

During FY2022, the Group had withheld all the orders and denied
fo accept any new orders from the marble slab customers who had
long overdue outstanding invoices. The Company believes that
many property developers in the PRC have postponed or slowed
their pace of construction due to their liquidity problems. It seems
that the recent supporting policy from the Chinese government was
fo rescue the cash-strapped property developers rather than to revive
the construction market in the PRC. The Company is concerned with
increasing the counterpart credit risk amid an indusiry downturn. As
a result, the Group did not record any sales of marble slabs during
FY2022 (FY2021: RMB15.5 million). The Group may consider
returning to the marble slab business when the property market in
the PRC shows any resilience.

Virtual Restaurant Business

In December 2021, the Group commenced a virtual restaurant
brand for a delivery-only operation. Initially, the Company engaged
an online page hosted by a third-party food delivery platform and
prepare food either out of a central kitchen or a separate brand
operating an existing franchise restaurant. During FY2022, the
Group successfully rolled out two of its own brands of “Burgogi
Korean BBQ Burger” and "Y' a 852" and launched its own website
of the Group's virtual restaurant (www.celeplate.co.uk) in August
2022. The Group has pivoted towards taking orders from the
Group’s own website instead of third-party delivery platform and
preparing ready-to-cook meal kits in the Group's own central kitchen
and selling them to the customers through the own website. In
late 2022, the Group started to sell the ready-fo-cook meal kits to
retailing stores and supermarkets as new disfribution channel and
has been developing a click-and-mortar strategy. The Company
believes that virtual kitchen will be a growth potential for the Group.

Exploration, Development and Production Activities
The Group focused on the development and mining at the
Zhangjiaba mine during FY2022. The Zhangjiaba Mine confains
44.2 million cubic meter of measured and indicated marble
resources, which represents 16.8 million cubic meter of proved
and probable marble reserves based on a block rate of 38%,
according fo the independent competent person’s report dated on 7
March 2011 (as shown in the Company's prospectus). There was
no geological exploration activity for the new mining site during

FY2022.
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The Zhangjiaba mine is mainly divided into the eastern mining zone
and the western mining zone. During FY2022, the Group continued
fo carry out the stripping of the overburden materials at the surface
for both the eastern and western zone of the deposit. The deposit
in these areas is still cracked. The Group expects that the further
development of the mine fo lower benches will be required for large
block production and the block production will commence no earlier

than 2025.

During FY2022, the aggregate expenditure of the mining operation
of the Group was approximately RMB44.8 million (FY2021:
RMB40.4 million), which mainly included depreciation on property,
plant and equipment and amortization of mining right and land use
right of approximately RMB3.1 million (FY2021: RMBO.4 million),
consumable stores and other expenses of approximately RMBO.3
million (FY2021: RMB1.1 million), and subcontracting cost of
stripping of approximately RMB41.4 million (FY2021: RMB38.7
million). The Group expanded the mine areas explored by the
outsourced engineering team in order fo reduce the fixed cost of
production and increase the financial flexibility of the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately RMB1.9
million or 2.6% from approximately RMB74.2 million for FY2021
to approximately RMB72.3 million for FY2022. The decrease
was primarily due to a combined effect of [i] an increase of
approximately RMB13.0 million in sales of marble slags from
approximately RMB58.6 million for FY2021 to approximately
RMB71.6 million for FY2022, resulting from an increase in
production and demand of marble slags and increase in average
selling price of marble slags. [ii) a decrease of approximately
RMB15.5 million in sales of marble slabs for FY2022, as result
of being withheld the new orders from the customers of the Group
which has long outstanding invoices as the Group implemented
a more tightened credit control over the customers; and (i) an
increase of approximately RMBO.6 million in sales of food services

for FY2022.
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Revenue by products

REEmME WA
Year ended 31 December
HBZ12H31HLEE

2022 2021 Change

2022%F 20214 =)

RMB’000 RMB'000 %

ARBT R ARET T %

Marble slags KEREDS 71,557 58,647 +22.0%
Marble slabs RIERRM = 15,491 -100.0%
Food services R m bR 732 109 +571.6%
72,289 74,247 -2.6%

Analysis by sales volume and selling price of marble related

BEAEANBAXBEEREEETNIN

business
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLEE
2022 2021 Change
2022%F 20214 k)|
Sales volume: HE
Marble slags (thousand tons) RNEARDS (TH) 2,752 2,586 +6.4%
Marble slabs (square meter) RERRH (FFK) = 56,925 -100.0%
Average selling prices: FHEE:
Marble slags (RMB per ton) RELRE (BEARET) 26.0 22.7 +14.5%
Marble slabs (RMB per square meter]  KIBHERM (AR,
ERHK) = 272.1 N/A i@ F
Gross profit and Gross profit margin EMNRERNE

Gross profit increased by approximately RMB11.6 million or 76.2%
from approximately RMB15.2 million for FY2021 to approximately
RMB26.8 million for FY2022. The increase was primarily due to an

increase by 14.5% in average selling price of marble slags.

Gross profit margin increased by 16.6 percentage poinfs from
20.5% for FY2021 to 37.1% for FY2022. The increase was
primarily due fo gain cost advantage by increase in production
output for the marble slags and an increase in average selling price
of marble slags.

14 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased from approximately
RMB3.7 million for FY2021 to approximately RMB8.5 million
for FY2022. The increase was primarily due to an increase of
approximately RMB4.8 million in distribution cost, marketing and
advertising cost, staff cost and other expenses for Virtual Restaurant
Business.

Impairment loss under expected credit loss model
The Group made an impairment loss of approximately RMB41.0
million under expected credit loss model, in which approximately
RMB37.9 million was provided for in relation to trade receivable
and approximately RMB3.1 million was provided for in relation to
other receivable.

(i) Impairment loss in relation to trade receivable
The impairment loss of approximately RMB37.9 million
in relafion fo frade receivable was provided for FY2022,
primarily due to payment delays of the outstanding invoices
owed from marble slab customers, due to tightening financial
market conditions. The Group manages its credit risk by
offering standardised credit terms to its customers of marble
products for an approved credit term of 90 days. However,
some major customers with longer relationships with the Group
were granted longer payment terms. The Group's credit policy
and the defermination of impairment loss on trade receivables
is also influenced by the individual characteristics of each
customer and default risk of the industry in which the custfomers
operate.

The customers had long overdue outstanding invoices, most
of which were for the goods delivered in 2019, 2020 and
2021. The Company believes the Covid-19 pandemic and
debt crisis events hit hard for these customers. The Company
has already withheld all delivery of orders and denied to
accept the new orders from marble slab customers until the
amounts due from the cusfomers were restored fo acceptable
level. The Company has made a full provision for impairment
of the outstanding trade receivables overdue for more than two
years according fo the Company’s accounting policies. The
other trade receivables overdue less than two years would be
impaired based on the ECL valuation assessment performed by
an independent valuer. The Group has been making progress
fo recover the outstanding invoice from these customers
during FY2022 and afferwards. The customers of the Group
have already settled for their outstanding overdue invoices
of approximately RMB7.8 million during FY2022 and further
setiled the overdue invoices of approximately RMB2.4 million
after the reporting date of the Group and up to the date of
this annual report. The Company has continued to assess the
repayment ability of these customers and actively communicate
with them to recover the outstanding receivables.
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(ii) Impairment loss in relation to other receivable

16

The impairment loss of approximately RMB3.1 million in
relation to other receivable was provide for FY2022, primarily
due to the assessment of the expected credit loss for the refund
in respect of the refurn of grinding mill machines and the
deposit for the construction of production plant.

In 2018, the Group formed a joint venture company (the “JV
Company”] with a GCC manufacturer as joint venture partner
(the ")V partner”’) in order to extend the business to ground
calcium carbonate powder production. The Group had placed
orders for construction of production plant and some grinding
mill machines and made the deposit payment of approximately
RMB51.6 million under the joint venture agreement. However,
as the Group had been caught up by a litigation involving
the Zhangjiaba mine, the Group and JV pariner terminated
the cooperation in form of joint venture. The Group withheld
the construction of production plant and delivery of grinding
mill machines from the suppliers. During the years, the Group
has been reaching and explore the possibility of jointly
embarking the GCC business with other GCC manufacturers.
Unfortunately, the discussion and negotiation had been on
hold due to the restriction of Covid-19 pandemic imposed in

China.

During FY2022, the Group has reached the refund agreement
with the contractors ("Contractors”] for the construction of
production plant, whereby the Contractors agreed to refund
the full amount of the deposits of approximately RMB10.2
million by four instalments in four years. The first instalments of
the refund agreements of approximately RMB2.0 million has

been received by the Group during FY2022.

During FY2022, the Group accepted the delivery of grinding
mill machines from the suppliers (“Suppliers”) as the Suppliers
did not allow the Group to keep the orders on hold. After
the delivery, the Group and the Suppliers has been in
negotiation in relation fo the return of the machines and refund
arrangement. In the end of 2022, the Group has agreed
fo return all the machines and the Suppliers has agreed to
refund in full amount of approximately RMB39.4 million
(after deducting the transportation and handling charges of
approximately RMB1.8 million] by four instalments in two
years. The first instalment of approximately RMB3.8 million
has been received by the Group up to the date of this annual
report.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

(i) 7 B9 4t B U 3K 78 2 3R 0 A

R20225 B F i H il & U 5K IA 5T 2
MEBEHARKES 100,000 T2
0 Bt SR B R M R AR B A EE KR
FzReHLEREERHE-

R2018%F  RXBEREEE MRS
TE - ASEE - ZEERBRORERD
(EREEBH(IAEBH]) IKILT
—HAERAR([AZRA]) AEHEHE
REAEMANERZLEERELBES
THEKTEZE IXNREHDAR
#51,600,000T A AR AEEZE
PRRXBBELUN R AKEESG
ERHEILUNEERRATEAETAE
AEBEFEREREERE NG FHER
RNAEH -ZFR AEE—HEEEM
EEMBERSHEREBYRT KXRRMR
EEMBREEGOAIEE - BRNE B
R BB e A T AL E IR B R B IR B
e HEARS REBCHEE -

R20228BFE - AKECD EARR
([HEB]) R REER B Z KRR
& Bl ARBRERNNFEASOAE
BUREREMHARYE10,200,0007T ° A&
SE D R20220 B F W BUR R &
PR EHRIEHARE2,000,0007T -

R2022MREE - AR ER ([H/E
BIDAAFASERBETE A5HE
EXHEBINMER -RXE®R K
SEEHER —EXRRERSIRE
BRRLBETER R20225K - A&
BMEREEREMAKS MERHDH
EXNMEAIOHP2BEREAOARK
39,400,000t (KK EBGARFEE
HAR®1,800,0007L) B EARFRA
H AEBEWRDRE-HRELHARK
3,800,0007T °

ANNUAL REPORT 2022



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &IRIE351smb il

In considering the repayment terms of the refund agreements
with the Contractors and Suppliers are more than one year
and the counterparty credit risk, the Group has assessed
the present value of the refund amounts under the refund
agreements and also assessed the impairment loss on the
present value of the refund amounts under the expected credit
loss model. The impairment assessment has been prepared by
independent valuer. As a results, the Group made provision
for loss on unwinding of discount on other receivable of
approximately RMBQ.1 million which was included in
administrative expenses and an impairment loss on other

receivable of approximately RMB3.1 million during FY2022.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased from approximately RMB20.6
million for FY2021 to approximately RMB38.3 million for FY2022.
The increase was primarily due to (ij an increase of approximately
RMB17.7 million in general operating expenses in Virtual Restaurant
Business which has commenced since December 2021: [(ii) an
increase of approximately RMB1.8 million in legal and professional
fee in relation to the recovery of trade receivables; [iii] an increase of
approximately RMBZ.0 million in expenses for greening work on the
mine site and tax charge for farmland occupation and (iv) an increase
of approximately RMBQ. 1 million in provision for loss on unwinding of
discount on other receivable (details are set out in the section under
“Impairment loss in relation fo other receivable” above).

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a loss of
approximately RMB61.9 million for FY2022, representing an
increase of approximately RMB11.6 million as compared to a loss

of approximately RMB50.3 million for FY2021.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's tofal equity inferests were
approximately RMB201.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 23.1% as compared with approximately RMB261.6
December 2021.
attributable to a net loss of approximately RMB61.9 million
recorded for FY2022.

million as at 31 The decrease was mainly

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB3.2 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB7.1 million). Cash and bank balances were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Chinese Renminbi
["RMB"). The Group has adequate financial resources to meet the
anticipated future liquidity requirement and capital expenditure
commitment.
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As at 31 December 2022, total borrowings of the Group of
approximately RMB19.0 million (31 December 2021: RMB11.8
million) comprise other loans of approximately RMB18.0 million (31
December 2021: RMB7.1 million) and a director’s loan (included
in amount due fo direcfors) of approximately RMB1.0 million (31
December 2021: RMB4.7 million). The borrowings are unsecured
and dominated in Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar. The
annual interest rate of the borrowings for FY2022 ranged from
5.0% to 12.7% per annum (FY2021: 5.0% to 10% per annum).
The borrowings of approximately RMB16.7 million were repayable
within one year which was accounted for as current liabilities of
the Group and the borrowings of approximately RMB1.3 million
were repayable within two years from drawdown date which was
accounted for as non-current liabilities of the Group. The Group
does not currently use any derivatives o manage the inferest rafe
risk. Gearing ratio, representing total borrowings divided by fotal
equity, was approximately 0.09 (31 December 2021: 0.05).

Capital Expenditure

During FY2022, the Group's capital expenditure amounted
to approximately RMB1.3 million (FY2021: RMB5.2 million),
which was primarily related to construction in progress on mining
infrastructure.

Charge of the Group's assets
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have any

charges on its assefs.

Significant investment held
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no material
investments held by the Group.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group principally operates its businesses in the People’s
Republic of China ("PRC"). The Group is not exposed fo significant
foreign exchange risk as most of the Group's business fransactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in RMB, which is
the functional and reporting currency of the Group. The Company
and certain subsidiaries are operating in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom. Most of their transactions, including revenue,
expenses, and other financing activities, are dominated in their local
currencies, such as Hong Kong dollar, United States dollar and
Pound Sterling. The Group is not exposed to any significant foreign
exchange fransaction risk in relafion to these currencies. The Group
has not entered into any foreign exchange confracts as hedging
measures.

18  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments.

As af 31 December 2021, the Group had a capital commitment
for the purchase of property, plant and equipment and construction
of property, plant and equipment which were contracted for but not
provided for amounted to approximately RMB8.8 million.

Future plans for material investments or capital
assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have
any other specific plan for material investments or capital assefs as

at 31 December 2022.

Environmental Policies and Performance

Details of environment po|1cies and performonce refers to the
“"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” contained in this
annual report for further information on the work done and efforts
made by the Group on environment protfection, legal compliance
and other aspects for the sustainable growth and development of
the businesses of the Group.

Compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations
During FY2022 and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

HEESAREZERERAF

HREE
M20224 R2021412A310 A& E L&
EREAKAERE-

BAREIE
R2022F12A3 1B AEBF EIMEKRE
AR o

R2021F12A31B  AEBERBEYE K
FEREENRZEDE BEERBHER
MERBBEAAENR ARKES, 800,000

JC °
EAREFEXREENRRGE

B AR F A WEE I R2022F 128318
AEETETMNEMCEBREARERERE
EZEERE -

REBRRERE
ERAREBRRERAZFARB F2HALNFRH
PREIRE HEREARE] EFHAN
SEHERRERE ZEARLEMBITE AN
SEEXTGOAREERNERAENTER
BHME—FER -

BTERAEERRZER

K202 BFERBEAFHROS HEF
B BERENAEEEBREEER
BEAVENEMREEERER-

2022 F 3R 19



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &IRIE51smb il

Key Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises employees as valuable assefs of the Group.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to employees
and reviews staff benefit regularly. The Group intends to use its best
effort to attract and aftain appropriate and suitable personnel to
provide services fo the Group.

The Group attaches importance to the relationships with its custfomers
and suppliers. The Group believes that building a long-term
beneficial relationship with each of them is of paramount importance
to establish mutual trust, loyalty and business development and on
which the Group's success and sustainability rely.

The Group will continue to maintain and strengthen its relationship
It is the
industrial norm that the marble mine operator usually selects a few

with its customers through regular contacts with them.

major distributors and manufacturers, which has production sites that
are close to the marble mine in order to save fransportation cosfs,
management cosfs as well as sales and markefing costs. Thus, the
Directors consider that there is no significant risk associated with
reliance on major customers.

Human Resources
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had employed a total of 38
December 2021:

cost, including directors’ emoluments, share options benefit and

employees (31 36 employees). The total staff

pension scheme confribution, was approximately RMB6. 1 million for
FY2022 (FY2021: RMB5.7 million).

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends in Hong
Kong and the PRC, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject to the
Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute a discretionary
bonus fo its employees as an incentive for their confribution to the

Group.

20 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSHREIRBEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Zheng Yonghui

Mr. Zheng Yonghui (Ef7kiE) , aged 54, has been an executive
director of the Company since @ April 2019. Mr. Zheng has over
20 vears of global business experience around many regions,
including Greater China, Asia and Europe. He has accumulated
rich experience in international trade and business management.

Zhang Weijun

Mr. Zhang Weijun (SR E ), aged 64, has been an executive
director of the Company since 24 December 2015. Mr. Zhang has
around 10 years of experience in mining industry and is currently a
vice president of a mining company in the PRC.

Zhang Cuiwei

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei (552 %k) , aged 54, has been an executive
director of the Company since 1 January 2016 and was appointed
as a member of Nomination Committee and a member of
Remuneration Committee with effect from 12 September 2018.
Ms. Zhang graduated in Foreign languages and Lliterature from Jilin
University of the PRC. Ms. Zhang has about 20 years of experience
in corporate management, personnel and administration affairs.

Zhang Mian

Mr. Zhang Mian (58 %), aged 65, has been an executive
director of the Company since 4 February 2019. Mr. Zhang Mian
graduated from South China Normal University in China and has
many years of experience in journalism and communication and
media management. He has worked in one of the most influential
mainstream newspaper group in South China. He has also
accumulated rich experience in business management in the fields of
construction, decoration engineering, packaging and printing, new
material development and application.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Yang Ruimin

Mr. Yang Ruimin (#58580) ["Mr. Yang'), aged 39, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company, chairman
of Nomination Committee, a member of Audit Committee and a
member of Remuneration Committee since 11 June 2018. Mr.
Yang holds a bachelor degree in Economic and Administrative
Management from PLA Nanjing Political College (H B A K £# 2
BB REUAEM) . Mr. Yang has over 10 years of experience in
human resource management in different industries.
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Andreas Varianos

Mr. Andreas Varianos, aged 44, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company and chairman of Audit Committee
since 17 July 2020. Mr. Varianos has over 13 years of experience
in corporate and financial services in Cyprus. Mr. Varianos holds a
bachelor of science degree in Business Administration (Accounting
and Finance) from the American College of Greece in Athens,
Greece. Since 2013, Mr. Varianos has been a Qualified ACCA
Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom. He had previously worked as a Senior Auditor
for KPMG Cyprus from 2007 to 2010. He had also worked as a
director of InferTaxAudit Auditors and Tax Consultants Limited from
2010 to 2017. He is currently the Founder and Managing Partner
of Santabros Enterprises Llimited (Edge Development Group) and
the Founder and Managing Director of AsusPlus Auditors and Tax
Consultants Limited since 2017. Mr. Varianos was appointed as a
director of G Entertainment Group Plc. on 30 April 2019, a Cyprus-
based holding company listed on the Cyprus Stock Exchange,
which is currently being dissolved by way of creditor’s voluntary
winding up.

Zu Rui

Ms. Zu Rui (#875), aged 32, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company, chairman of Remuneration
Committee and member of Audit Committee and Nomination
Commitiee since 29 September 2022. She has over 8 years of
experience working in the sustainability consulting industry and
financial institutions. Ms. Zu obtained a bachelor of arts (honours)
in accounting and finance degree with first class honours from De
Montfort University in Leicester, the United Kingdom in June 2013,
and a master of science in carbon finance from University of
Edinburgh in Edinburgh, the United Kingdom in August 2014. From
January 2016 to April 2021, she worked at Inenco Group Limited
with her last position as a project and product solutions developer.
From April 2021 to August 2022, she worked at Emst & Young
Services ltd as a manager in financial services (consulting). Since
August 2022, she has served as a structure finance — corporate
sector advisory vice president of National \Westminster Bank Plc.

22 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Li Yunfei

Mr. Li Yunfei (ZEEFR), aged 53, has been the chief executive
officer {CEQ") of the Company since 1 September 2022. Mr. Li
was admitled as a certified public accountant in the PRC. Prior
to joining the Company, he worked at Zhongrui Certified Public
Accountants in the PRC from 2002 to 2004 as a partner, at several
private real estate development and investment companies in the
PRC from 2005 to 2013 as a vice president, at Beijing Sunlon
Development Dairy Co., lid in the PRC from 2013 to 2019 as a
vice president, and at a private investment and consulting company
in the PRC from 2020 to 2021 as deputy general manager. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Central Insfitute
of Finance and Banking in the PRC (currently known as Central
University of Finance and Economics) in June 1993.
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EXEifHhS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company sirives fo attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders. The
Board is responsible for implementing good corporate governance
of the Company and believes that high standards of corporate
governance provide a framework and solid foundation for the Group
to safeguard the interests of shareholders and other stakeholders
and enhance the shareholders’ value.

The Company has complied with all code provisions and, where
appropriate, adopted the recommended best practices set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “listing Rules”) for
FY2022 except for deviation from code provisions C.2.1, C.1.8
and F.2.2 of the CG Code.

Deviation from C.2.1 of the CG Code

The roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer (the
"CEQ") are clearly defined and segregated fo ensure independence
and proper checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the
business strategy and direction of the Company and has executive
responsibility, provides leadership for the Board and ensures
proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging of its
responsibilities. The CEO is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company’s strategies and the co-ordinafion of
overall business operations.

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The division of responsibilities between
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing. No officer carried the fitle of CEO
until Mr. Li Yunfei was appointed as CEO on 1 September 2022,
and no chairman was appointed by the Board during FY2022.
The duties of the CEO are undertaken by executive directors of the
Company while the independent board members assume the role
and responsibility of chairman of the Board fo ensure that the board
is effective in its fask of sefting and implementing the Company's
direction and strategy. Following the appointment of Mr. Li Yunfei
as the CEO, the executive directors would collectively assume the
responsibility fo provide the overall leadership to the Board. The
Board is of the view that there is a sufficient balance of power
and the current arrangement has contributed to sfrong management
within the Company.
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Deviation from C.1.8 of the CG Code

Under code provision of C.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against the Directors. Currently, the Company does not have
insurance cover in this respect as the Board believes that, with
the current infernal control system and the close supervision of the
management, the Director’s risk of being sued or getting involved in
litigation in their capacity as a director of the Company is relatively
low. Nevertheless, the Board will review the need for insurance
cover from time fo time.

Deviation from F.2.2 of the CG Code

Under code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. The chairman of
the board should also invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend.
In their absence, the chairman should invite another member of the
committee or failing this their duly appointed delegates to atfend.
During FY2022, Ms. Zhang Cuiwei aftended the annual general
meefing (the “AGM") and other members of the Board were unable
to attend AGM due to other business commitments. The Board
is aware of this non-compliance and will continue to bring the
imporfance of attending AGMs to the attention of each committee’s

chairman and its members.

DIRECTORS” SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers [the “Model Code”] as
set out in Appendix 10 of the listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries with all directors of the Company
(the “Board” or "Directors”), all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
regarding directors’ securities transaction throughout FY2022, and
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with such
required standard of dealings regarding securities fransactions by

Directors throughout FY2022.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(1)

26

Composition of the Board

The Board has maintained a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of
the Group and for the exercise of independent judgment.
The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. Each Director of
the Company has been appointed on the strength of his/her
caliber, experience, professional qualification and potential
fo contribute to the proper guidance of the Group and its
businesses.

The composition of the Board was set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Yonghui

Mr. Zhang Weijun

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Mr. Zhang Mian

Independent Non-executive Directors
M. Yang Ruimin

Mr. Andreas Varianos

Ms. Pei Bing (resigned on 30 June 2022)

Ms. Zu Rui [appointed on 29 September 2022)

During FY2022, to the best knowledge of the Company, there
was no financial, business or family relationship among the
members of the Board.

Pursuant to the Bye-aws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his
appointment and be subject to re election at such meeting and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition fo the
existing Board shall hold office only unfil the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re election. At each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-
third but not less than one-hird) shall retire from office by
rotation. Each director shall refire at least once every three
years.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of

Directors and Senior Management” on pages 21 to 23 of this
annual report.
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() Independent non-executive Directors

Each of independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”,
each an “INED") was appointed for a term of three years,
subject to reelection by rotation at least once every three
years. The re-election of each of these INEDs who has served
on the Board for more than nine years is subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders.

The Company received from each of its INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board has reviewed the appointments of the
INEDs and considered that all of them are independent and
meet the independence criteria sef out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Mr. Zheng Yonghui, who fook chair of the Board Meeting held
on 28 March 2022, met with the INED's without the presence
of other Directors.

Ms. Pei Bing resigned as an INED on 30 June 2022. Since
then, the Company only had two independent non-executive
Directors left on the Board until the appointment of Ms. Zu Rui
on 29 September 2022. The Company did not comply with
the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) of the Llisting Rules from
the resignation of Ms. Pei Bing unfil the appointment of Ms.
Zu Rui.

Saved as disclosed above, the Company complied with
requirements under Rule 3.10(1], Rule 3.10(2) and Rule
3.10A of the Llisting Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.
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() EERESTEEBERRRREZ

() Attendance of Directors at the board meeting

and general meeting

The Directors can attend a meeting in person or by means of
such telephone, electronic or other communication facilities that
permit all persons participating in the meeting fo communicate
with each other simuHoneous\\/ and instomoneous|y in
accordance with the Bye-laws. The company secrefary of the
Company (the "Company Secretary”) will assist the chairman
of the Board and/or executive Director to prepare the agenda
of the meefing and each Director may request to include any
matters in the agenda for the regular Board meetings. All
Directors may seek the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. All directors will also be provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and
upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company's expense. All minutes of Board meefings
were recorded in sufficient detail, including matters considered
and decisions reached by the Board and are open for
inspection by Directors.

The Bye-laws contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

28  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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(1)

There were 5 board meetfings and 1 general meeting held
during FY2022. The attendance of each Director at the board
meetings and general meeting is sef out below:

R2022MFERE A RRABEETSR
EEZg2aRIRABERARE -BRESEHE
E=ZeR MBERARENREHEINT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEBTEBERE

Director Board meeting ~ General meeting
= EEEgE BRAE
Mr. Zheng Yonghui B oK R 5 A 7/7 0/1
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REH L 7/7 1/1
Ms. Zhang Weijun REBEILE 7/7 0/1
Mr. Zhang Mian R A 4/7 0/1
Mr. Yang Ruimin e E 0/7 0/1
Mr. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos 4t &£ 0/7 0/1
Ms. Pei Bing FEt

[resigned on 30 June 2022) (R2022E6 308 & 1T) 0/2 0/1
Ms. Zu Rui N

(appointed on 29 September 2022) (7202299 A290HEZE ) 1/2 0/0

The Board and Management

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Group, which includes leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions,
internal control, risk management and performances. The
principal functions of the Board is to (1) convene general
meetings and report the Board's work at general meetings;
(2) implement the resolutions passed by the shareholders
in general meetings; (3) consider and approve strategies,
financial objectives, annual budget, investment proposals of
the Group; (4) formulate the proposals for profit distributions;
(5) assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of
the Group; and (6] exercise other powers, functions and
duties conferred by the shareholders in general meeting. It is
the responsibiht\/ of the Board to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s
circumsfances and fo ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company's corporate governance
objectives. The Board operates under defined terms of
reference which sef out matters specifically reserved for its
decision.
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30

The partnership between our Board and the management
team is highly transparent and collaborative. The management
team is delegated with the authority and responsible by the
Board for the day-to-day management of the Group and is
accountable to the Board. The management team has overall
responsibility for formulating the business strategies and
development plan of the Group and is also responsible for
the supervision and execution of the plans of the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

The Board has also established mechanisms pursuant to Code
Provision B.1.4 of the CG Code fo ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board, which the Board
shall review on an annual basis to ensure the implementation
and effectiveness of such mechanisms. A summary of the
mechanism is sef out below:

Composition
The Board shall ensure the appointment of at least three INEDs
and at least one-third of its members being INEDs (or such
higher threshold as may be required by the Listing Rules from
time to time).

Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee shall adhere to the nomination
policy [see below] with regard to the nomination and
appointment of INEDs. The INED candidate must safisfy the
independence requirements under Rule 3.13 of the Llisting
Rules. Each INED is also required to inform the Company
as soon as practicable if there is any change in his or her
own personal particulars that may materially affect his or her
independence and provide an annual confirmation of his or
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Channel for Communication

The Company is committed to ensuring that the INEDs
will be given the opportunity and channel for Directors to
communicate and express their independent views and
inputs to the Board and its commitiees. The Company has
established channels through formal and informal means
whereby INEDs can express their views in an open, candid
as well as confidential manner, should circumstances require,
which include meeting with the CEQ without the presence of
the other Directors fo discuss major issues and any concerns,
and dedicated meeting sessions with the CEO and interaction
with management and other Board members including the
CEO outside the boardroom.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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(V) Board Diversity Policy

The Board has a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sefs out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board, and a sustainable and balanced development of
the Company. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriafe to the requirements of the Company’s business. In
designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
fo gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time fo time. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance its operating results and quality of its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees diversity at the Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. A truly diverse Board will include and make
good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry
experience, background, gender and other qualities of the
Directors. These differences will be considered in defermining
the optimum composition of the Board. All appointments of the
Directors are made on meritocracy, and will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
seven Directors, amongst them, three are INEDs, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management
process. As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprised five
males, representing approximately 7 1% of the Board, and two
females, representing approximately 29% of the Board; and
our senior management comprised one male, representing
100%. The Board is also characterised by significant diversity,
whether considered in terms of gender, age, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's
composition, the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) considered that the requirements of
the Board Diversity Policy had been met.
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(VI) Continuous professional development of the

32

Directors

According fo the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Directors, on an ongoing basis, have been provided with
reading materials in relation to amendments to or updates on
relevant laws, rules and regulations relevant to their duties. In
addition, the Company encourages the Directors to enroll in a
wide range of professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Llisting Rules, Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and/or corporate governance
practices so that they can continuously improve their relevant
knowledge and skills and to ensure their confribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. The Company will, if
necessary, provide timely and regular trainings to the Directors
fo ensure that they are kept abreast of the latest developments
in the Listing Rules, as well as industry-specific and innovative

(V) ESEHEEXRR
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BrEFREAEER LT HASEI- ARRE
REBY FTRANEFERARITE
5 ) Bl 37 2

changes.

Directors Type of continuous professional development programmes
BEEHA HEEERRETEER
Mr. Zheng Yonghui B I 5 A B
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei SREB R B
Mr. Zhang Weijun REERE B
Mr. Zhang Mian SRk HE B
Mr. Yang Ruimin B L B
Mr. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos 4t 4 A+ B
Ms. Zu Rui HFEL L A+B
Notes: B 5E

A attending seminars/forums/workshops/conferences relevant to the A PEREEREEREMBENTTE HiE

business or directors’ duties

B: reading regulatory updates

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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BOARD COMMITTEES

(1)

Audit Committee

The audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) of the Company
has been established by the Board with specific writtlen terms
of reference and all members of the Audit Commitiee are

INEDs.

The latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the primary duties of the audit committee of the Company
are mainly fo make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external audifor,
the review of the financial statements and material advice
in respect of financial reporting and the oversight of infernal
control procedures of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Andreas Varianos, Mr. Yang Ruimin
and Ms. Zu Rui. Mr. Andreas Varianos is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

During FY2022, the Audit Committee held two meetings fo,
including but not limited to, 1) review the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2021 in conjunction with the
external auditor; 2) review the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 before their submission to the Board
and monitored the infegrity of such financial statements; 3)
review and assess the external auditor’s independence or
objective in relation to the provision of non-audit services; 4)
review the infernal confrol and risk management systems and
their effectiveness based on an internal control review report
prepared by an independent advisory firm; and 5) meet with
the external auditor to discuss the nature and scope of the
audit and the areas of concern on the financial statements and
was satisfied with their work, their independence, and their
obijectivity.
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EFLHE

(1)

BiERES
BEGCRUAAABIHEES ([Hi
ZE®)) RAEABMEARERE-
BHZEGMEBREHARBIFNT
BE-

BZEENRNBESETEHNE X
I EAYNEIE SR

REEHAZESVRERE ARAF
AZEENTERERIZME EFZ
ELRRERIBEAMAEETEHFEHER
B EHVBER AMBREEER
HEARAUNREEASEENADEE
BT
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EXEIIBHS

The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of
the members of the Audit Committee at the audit committee
meefings are set out below:

B ZBemMEARNETZEENER
FEFZESEIZNRBHEIIMT

Attendance/
Members of Audit Committee Number of meetings
B EZEBEHE HE " BITEERE
Mr. Andreas Varianos (Chairman) Andreas Varianos 5t & (£ /) 2/2
Mr. Yang Ruimin %fﬁiﬁ(ﬁi 2/2
Ms. Zu Rui [oppointed on 29 September 2022)  #Ei& + 0/0
(FR2022FQH20B EZR L)
Ms. Pei Bing [resigned on 30 June 2022) FERZLT 0/1
(FA20229F 6 A30H & fE)

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of
the Company has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Remuneration
Committee are INEDs.

The latest terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are moin|y to make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and the senior management of the Group, review
performance-based remuneration and ensure none of the
Directors determine their own remuneration.

As at the dafe of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Ms. Zu Rui and Mr. Yang

Ruimin, and one executive Director, namely Ms. Zhang
Cuiwei. Ms. Zu Rui is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee

During FY2022, the Remuneration Committee held three
meetings to approve and review the policy and structure
and the remuneration pockages of the Directors and the

management of the Company.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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(I11)

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility
to determine the remuneration packages on individual
executive Direcfors and senior management, in compliance

with E.1.2 (c)(i] of the CG Code.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee and
attendance of the members of the Remuneration Commitiee at
the remuneration committee meeting are set out below:

FHZBEGCEEREMT BEE @S
TEELREREEAENFMNEE: N
HatEERTRHEE.2()) K-

MR EFHEZEEKE K
SEMREEIT

’

HHMEZE®
=|

)
FHFHEES

7l

Attendance/
Members of Remuneration Committee Number of meeting
FHEEERE HEBITEERE
Ms. Zu Rui (Chairman) Mt (£E)
(oppointed on 29 September 2022) (R2022FQH29REEE) 0/0
Ms. Pei Bing (Chairman) TERZE (FE)
[resigned on 30 June 2022) (202256 A30H B T) 0/1
Mr. Yang Ruimin HE BT E 3/3
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei KRB 3/3

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company has been
established by the Board with specific written terms of
reference. The Nomination Committee has also formulated
and adopted its Nomination Policy, a summary of which is
disclosed in “Nomination Policy” below.

The latest terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are mainly to make recommendations to the Board on
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become the Board
members, considering the reappointment of the Directors and
succession planning for the Directors.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Yang Ruimin and Ms.
Zu Rui, and one executive Director, namely Ms. Zhang
Cuiwei. Mr. Yang Ruimin is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

HEESAREZERERAF
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The Nomination Committee reviews the composition of the
Board from the diversified angles up to the date of this report
and summarised as follows:

BEAREAH REZBEERZ T
AERTEESNMAR BtmT:

Number of Directors

EEAY

Gender: 1R

- Male -5 5

- Female - 2
Ethnicity: £

— Chinese - 6

— Cypriot - EHEKHT 1
Age Group: FicA R -

— Between 31 and 40 - 312405 2

— Between 41 and 50 - 412505 1

— Between 51 and 60 - 513 E605% 2

— Between 61 and 70 - 612705 2
length of service (years) RIEEFR (F)

- Between O and 9 years - 09 7

For the purpose of implementing the Board Diversity Policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

1. The Company should comply with the requirements on
board composition in the Listing Rules from time to time,
including ensuring that there is no single gender board
(with a 3-year transition period), with the ultimate goal
of achieving gender parity.

2. The number of INEDs should represent at least one-third
of the Board.

3. At least one of the INEDs must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives under the

Board Diversity Policy for FY2022.

36 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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During FY2022, the Nomination Committee held three
meetings to nominate and make recommendation of
candidates for Directors and CEO and review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and concluded that
members of the Board have possessed the expertise and
independence to carry out the Board’s functions and
responsibilities.

Ms. Zu Rui was nominated according to the Nomination
Policy during FY2022. The Nomination Committee put
forward Ms. Zu Rui as a candidate nominated by Mr. Zheng
Yonghui, given her experience in corporate sustainability and
ESG advisory and the gender diversity she could bring to the
Board. After evaluating Ms. Zu Rui's suitability for strengthening
the Group's corporate governance af a nomination committee
meetling, an unanimous resolution was passed to recommend
Ms. Zu Rui as an INED candidate for the Board's approval.
The Board passed a unanimous resolution fo appoint Ms. Zu

Rui as an INED.

R2022MBFEER REHZEEEETT
SREBARBESTRITRARKEEA
VIEFHEBERZZIALBTEZTEN
R -HENAK YTRSEFTENEAR
BEEXHNBEBIEOIABRTESZSN
BeraE-

REBERZBE HHBLER20220 B4
EERZ -HRERLXIREEARE
ZRERR HERERBBETHMNL
BLEARESFETRNMINZ T
REZEERBMEFRBEKELLE
REANEEA- RREZZBEEEH L
EEBLEIRMERNRBEEEANE
EER REZBEE - HBBERZER
BEBZEIABIUNATEFTHREA
NHEZSERE - BEFS - ZBEBRE
RZEEB LT ABIUNNTES -

Attendance/
Members of Nomination Committee Number of meeting
REZEERE HEBITEBRE
Mr. Yang Ruimin (Chairman) BB E (JEEZEEX/E) 3/3
Ms. Zu Rui (appointed on 29 September 2022)  #F %+
(20229 H29B B % 1) 0/0
Ms. Pei Bing (resigned on 30 June 2022) ozt
(202256 A30H B E) 0/1
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei KRB LT 3/3
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NOMINATION POLICY 4 BUR
The Group adopted a nomination policy ["Nomination Policy”) on 1 AREBR2019F 1 A1 HH M —HIBE L KK
(REBE]) ZBEOP2EENOT

January 2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed as follows:

1. Obijective 1. B®
1.1 The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable 1] REZECENEFTTRILABEN

candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders for election as directors
of the Company at general meetings or appoint him/her
to fill casual vacancies.

REAAFEZE ARBRERRNEH
ERARALETIARAESTXZE
TR B A L AE# R B ZEBR[ R
REtHEBREZ-

1.2 The Nomination Policy helps the Nomination Committee 1.2 REBXEYREZZESRESS
MREFSAERE ERMEAZ
TAETHERTE UIEEXEH

and the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives

appropriate to the requirements of the Group's business XBEEMNEK
development.
2. Selection Criteria 2. BERE
2.1 The factors listed below would be used as reference by 2] EREEREREANSGBEER R

HREEER2ETXMIAE:

the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of
a proposed candidate:

*  Qualifications and experience in the relevant e RARRBAEBME RIS
RHHEBITENEL RER:

industries in which the Company's business is
involved or is going to be involved:;

e Commitment in respect of available ftime and e RBRARMBLHEBEBEAIN
relevant interest; R

®  Reputation for integrity; and e WEBEX

e Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited e EEXFERXHEMNZTIL BRE

BRENER X RBEE
R REBER BXRE&R WE-A
A M AR 75 4 B o

to gender, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has
the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.

38  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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3. Nomination Procedures
3.1 The Nomination Committlee shall call a meefing, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members
([if any) for consideration by the Nomination Committee
prior to its meeting. The Nomination Commitlee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by
Board members;

3.2 Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information, together with their
written consent fo be appointed as a director of the
Company. The Nomination Committee may request
candidates fo provide additional information and
documents, if considered necessary;

3.3 The Nomination Committee shall evaluate the proposed
candidate’s suitability with reference to the selection
criteria stated above and make recommendation(s) to the
Board's consideration and approval;

3.4 In the case of the reelection of a director at the general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall review the
overall contribution of the directors to the Company and
their services, their partficipation and performance within
the Board, and whether such director still meets the
needs fo complement the Company's corporate strategy.

4. Review of the Nomination Policy

4.1 The Board will review the Nomination Policy from fime
to time.

HE S AREERARA T
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate governance
policy of the Company. During the last financial year, at its board
meeting fo approve the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021, the Board monitored the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
reviewed the Group's policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements. At the same meeting, the Board
also reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the Company'’s
2021 Annual Report. The Board also reviewed its code of conduct
applicable to employees and directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's
financial statements for each financial period, including the
preparation of annual and interim accounts, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that period. The Company deploys appropriate
and sufficient resources to prepare audited accounts. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the
Group and fo prevent and defect fraud and other irregularifies.
The Direcfors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance, position
and prospects. The inferim and annual results of the Company are
announced in a fimely manner within the limit of two months and
three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

40  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid or payable for the services provided for
FY2022 to Elite Partners CPA Limited ("Elite Partners”) is set out

below:

Services rendered

7wt i 57 T

B20228 B ERE R M E N K
BT EREAMEHHAARAR ([HLE
rMFEHRIIMT

Fee paid/payable

20 RE Bt ENER
RMB'000

ARET T

Audit of financial statements EIT SRR 538
Other non-audit services H A IEFE TR 139
6/7

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing fo take in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Commitlee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and infernal control system to ensure adequate confrol in place fo
safeguard the Group's assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle all significant risks associated with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to respond to any risks resulting from significant changes to the
business environment. The risk management and internal confrol
systems are designed fo mitigate the potential losses of the business
of the Group.
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Jo I A B B N S B
EEE2HEERGERATEERTRER
R B R 3E R P A R O BRI R AR
YREAEERIREFBEAROARE
B RN EE R

B ZEERBEHASELREZENARE
BrRABERETRT B ZEEHKER
AEBE G RAELE S R B 55 B ¥R B AL 8 P
MER BTEE KREEINARINBER
M) JE R 1

AEBERBRER AR ROREER
RERLABEERG UWEREAENHE
BEEBREAEEEERMNEBBEA O

Ns
S o

Het

B

AEBCRYEREIERFF RS &G R
AEEEBERN —VEERR -BEFEEE
FEREBRENEMNERNE (L LETIE
FREXHBRRZEXECTE RO T AR -
REEEEMABERERR D AEENEEE
Bz BERKRME -

2022 3R 41



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ EiG*hs

The management would identify the risks associated with the
business of the Group by considering both internal and external
factors and events which include political, economic, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed
and prioritised based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opporfunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment results,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follows:

- Risk refention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market; and

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are designed tfo
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For FY2022, the Group has engaged an external advisory firm fo
perform the review on the risk management policy and procedures
and carry out the internal audit function to ensure the effectiveness
and efficiency of the risk management and internal control system of
the Group. The external advisory firm is independent of the Group's
daily operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management
and infernal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs
and tests of operational effectiveness of the procedures, systems
and confrols established by the Group including various operational
cycles of the Group such as the revenue and receipts, purchase and
payments, project management, fixed assets and capital expenditure
management and financial reporting. There is no significant
deficiency and weakness on the internal confrol system that may
affect the financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions has been identified by the external advisory

firm for FY2022.
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Based on the review by the external advisory firm, the Board
reached the conclusion that the risk management and internal control
system and procedures of the Group were effective and adequate.
Such systems, however, are designed to only manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the Group's business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against any material misstatement or loss.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Wai Kee ["Mr. Cheung”] is the company secrefary
of the Company. He is an employee of the Company and has
adequate knowledge of the Company to discharge his duty as the
company secrefary of the Company. Mr. Cheung confirmed that he
has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for

FY2022.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has established and maintained the procedures and
internal controls for the of inside information. The Company has
adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
fransactions. Other employees of the Group who are likely to being
in possession of inside information of the Company are also subject
to the same dealing restrictions. The Group also strictly prohibits
the Directors from the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information fo the advantage of himself or others. The Company
promptly identifies, assesses and escalates any inside information
and any information which may potentially constitute inside
information to the Board, which decides the need for disclosure.
Inside information and other information which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Llisting Rules will be announced on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in due
course.
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SHAREHOLDERS” RIGHTS

(1)

(1)

(I11)

44

Shareholders convene a special general
meeting

Pursuant to the Byedaws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, any one or more registered shareholders holding af
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the voting right
at general meefings of the Company (the “Requisitionists”)
shall, at all times, have the right, by written requisition that
must be signed by the Requisitionists to the Board deposited
at the registered office of the Company fo require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition and such meeting
shall be held within three months after the deposit of such
requisition. If, within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the Requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner. Any reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionists by reason of the failure
of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the
Requisitionists by the Company.

Procedure by which shareholders may put
forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should send their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company's share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meeting of the Company.

Shareholders put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions under the Bye-laws or the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda regarding procedures for Shareholders
to put forward proposals af general meetings other than a
proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above fo convene a special
general meeting for any business specified in such written
requisition.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

JB SHRRE A

(1)

(1)

(I11)

BRREBMARRIZIRIAE

REQFMAAUEEREIOSIFARE
FANEXBREAFAE NI R ER
ARRBRRANEG ERRENNAKR DA
REANtDZ -0 —BHZHEMR
RMBFRANEARBREIRKLEN
ABENEAEREARANEMMPE
BRTEFE EXEFSAREKREH
REe UREABERMEANEMFNSE
BmMEBAEAREZXEHBERK=
HARBT - HEEERN BB ER
QIBAREARABERE BIZKARA
BITAMBER AWM TTE KR AR
BRAENEEFTEREARAREME
EWEMAREEM-

BRROESSRHIEANERF

BRREBEHBRENERNEI AR AN
B BFELREETRELFELAER
NE MU REBEFE2RABRIES
SRAEMALIZEIZ12-17165 4

BRTARARBANBRRAEG LRES
SEHER-

BRARRAELREERSR

ANEHBAREIOSIFRAAERNE
X ERBREBRRAGREZFRENE
FRAREEEEFNHARKIN) -BRA
RIE LR FF B F B RSB KGN EE
EEFARRELNEMNEHE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT fEE &SRS

INVESTOR RELATIONS

(1)

(i)

Constitutional documents
The Company confirmed that there has been no significant

change in the Company's memorandum of associations and

the Bye-laws during FY2022.

Communication with shareholders

The Board recognises the imporfance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
and the investors. The Board also recognises that effective
communication with the investors is the key to establish
investor's confidence and tfo attract new investors. Therefore,
the Group s committed to maintaining a high degree of
fransparency to ensure that the investors and the shareholders
receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information
of the Group by ensure timely publication of its annual
report, interim reports, announcements and circulars on
the Stock Exchange's website at www.hkexnews.hk and/
or the Company’s website at www.kingstonemining.com.
The Directors and the Board commitiee members are also
available fo answer questions at annual general meefing of
the Company.

The Company has established a communication policy which
aims at promoting effective communication with the Company's
shareholders and the investors, enabling them to exercise their
rights in an informed manner. It is the Company’s general
policy to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and the invesfors. Enquiries, suggestions or views from the
shareholders and/or investors are welcomed, and enquiries
from the shareholders may be put to the Board through the
following channels to the Company:

1. By mail to the headquarters and principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 14, 18/F, Seapower
Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong;

2. By telephone at telephone number (852) 2527 4999;

3. By fax at fax number (852) 2527 5666; or

4. By email at cs@kingsfonemining.com.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and

effectiveness of its communication policy during FY2022 and
conclude that it is effective.
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() Dividend policy

46

The Company adopted a dividend policy on payment
of dividends on 1 January 2019. It aims at enhancing
transparency of the Company and facilitating its shareholders
and the potential investors of the Company to make informed
investment decision relating to the Company. The Board will
review the dividend policy from fime to time.

While the Company intends to declare and pay dividends in
the future, the payment and the amount of any dividends will
depend on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

[a)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

(b)  the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

[c] refained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(d)  the Group's liquidity position;

le)  the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

[l any other factors that the board of directors of the
Company deems relevant.

Shareholders will be entitled to receive such dividends pro
rata according fo the amounts paid up or credited as paid
up on the shares. The declaration, payment, and amount of
dividends will be subject to the Board's discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of distributable profits as
permitted under the relevant laws. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to declare or distribute any
dividend in the amount set out in any of the p|ons or at all.
The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may
not be used as a reference or basis fo determine the level of
dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
the future.
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iR - HBREISHRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The objective of this Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG”)
Report is to highlight the Group's ESG performance for the purpose
of assisting all stakeholders in understanding the Group's ESG
concepts and practices in achieving sustainable development for the
future.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report includes the business
operations of the Group in China and the United Kingdom and the
offices in China and Hong Kong during the period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”) relating to the
overall performance, risks, strategies, measures and commitments
of four aspects: quality of the working environment, environmental
profection, operating practices and community participation.

The variation in our performance is mainly due to the business
operation, the virtual restaurant business in the UK is now included

in this ESG report.

REPORTING STANDARD

The Report complies with the disclosure requirements set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the
Main Board Llisting Rules. An assessment on the applicability and

materiality of the relevant key performance indicators (“KPls") under
the ESG Reporting Guide had been conducted.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
The following principles are adopted in the Report:

*  Materiality: Important and relevant information to stakeholders
on different ESG aspects is covered in the Report. A materiality
assessment was conducted to determine material ESG issues,
with results approved by the Board.

° Quantitative: The relevant standards, methodologies and
assumptions used fo prepare the quantitative information are
disclosed, as appropriate. Quantitative information is provided
with narrafive and comparative figures, where possible.

e Consistency: Consistent methodologies are used to prepare
and present ESG data in the Report, unless otherwise
specified, to allow for meaningful comparisons.
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e Balance: The information is presented without the
inappropriate use of selecfions, omissions or other forms of
manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by

the reader.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the Group's ESG-related risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
confrol systems are in place. Our management is delegated the
responsibility of coordinating the implementation of the Group's
environment, employment and service quality assurance policies.

The Board leads and provides direction to management by instituting
ESG policies and initiatives, supervising their implementation and
monitoring ESG performance. The Board reviews ESG affairs
regularly, including environmental protection, employment and
labour practices, operating practices, and community investment,
and implements appropriate measures to enhance the ESG
performance of the Group. The Board confinues to explore ways to

further strengthen the ESG governance of the Group.

STAKEHOLDERS" FEEDBACK

As the Group strives for excellence, stakeholders’ feedback is
appreciated, especially on topics listed as the highest importance in
the materiality assessment and its ESG approach and performance.
Please give your suggestions or share your views with us at email
address: cs@kingstonemining.com.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback in regards to our
businesses and ESG aspects. With the goal to strengthen the
sustainability approach and performance of the Group, we put effort
info maintaining close communication with our key stakeholders,
including but not limited to government and regulafory authorities,
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, and the general
public. We take stakeholders’ expectafions into consideration in
formulating our businesses and ESG strategies by utilizing diversified
engagement methods and communication channels, shown as
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the reporting period, the Group has evaluated a number
of environmental, social and operafing items, and assessed their
importance to stakeholders and the Group through various channels.
This assessment helps to ensure that the Group's business objectives
and development direction satisfy with the stakeholders’ expectations
and requirements. The Group's and stakeholders’ matters of concern
are listed out in the following materiality matrix:

Step 1: Identify potential ESG issues

Taking into account the requirements of “ESG Reporting Guide”
and the latest sustoinobihf\/ trends in the industry to idenfify relevant
material issues. Twenty-one ESG issues were identified where they
mattered most to the Group's businesses and stakeholders.

Step 2: Materiality assessment

To determine the materiality of the ESG issues, the view of the
Group's senior management as well as our key stakeholders was
sought. The relevance/importance of each of the ESG issues was
assessed and scored according to their views on a scale of O to 10
(O is irrelevant and 10 is crucial).

Step 3: Priority

Based on the materiality assessment result, the Group prioritised the
issues in two dimensions, namely, “Importance fo stakeholders” and
“Importance to our operation” and prepared the materiality matrix
as below. The ESG issues that fall within the top right-hand quadrant
are of the greatest importance.
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Materiality to stakeholder
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group has recognised the urgency of climate change and
other environmental crises, infegrated environmental considerations
info its strategic and operational decisions, and demonstrated its
commitment by minimizing its environmental footprint during its daily
operations with the setting up of internal standards, procedures and
guidelines.

Emissions

During the year of 2022, air pollutants, including sulphur oxides,
nifrogen oxides and particulate matter, were mainly generated
from vehicles for transportation. Meanwhile, the greenhouse gases
("GHGs") emissions were primarily from the combustion of fuels and
consumption of electricity during business operations.

The Group is concerned about the adverse effect the use of fuel has
on the environment and promotes carpooling wherever possible and
using tele-conference or video conference in place of facetoface
meetings. The major air emissions during the year are mainly due
fo the use of motor vehicles for staff to and from the mine site and
the urban area. The Group will confinue to seek for ways to reduce
GHG emissions and land contamination.
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Unit 2022 2021
By 2022% 20214
Air emission
B8 SR HE
Nitrogen Oxides kg 22 29.7
=Rl a) T
Sulphur Oxides kg 0.1 0.2
meaty T
Respiratory suspended particles kg 1.5 2.2
AR AR R F Tr
GHG emission
BEREHN
Scope 1 - Fuel combustion Tonne 16.5 27.7
B — R LT}
Scope 2 - Electricity consumption Tonne 5.1 11.6
#HIE2—FHE i}
Total GHG emission Tonne 21.6 39.3
RERBHENEE 45
GHG emission intensity Tonne/Million dollar of revenue 0.3 0.5
BEREEREE W, B & A
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Hazardous and non-hazardous wastes production

During the year, no hazardous wastes were produced during the
daily operation; however, ink cartridges, fluorescent tubes and LED
light tubes were generated under review, which was all properly
collected, handled and recycled. Non-hazardous waste generated
was mainly municipal solid waste from daily operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, 3.9 tonne of non
hazardous wastes have been disposed, which mainly consist of
food wastes and used paper. The wastes produced are collected by
licensed waste collectors.

The Group has formulated a guideline for waste classification,
reduction, reuse, recycling and disposal. Paper is one of the major
non-hazardous wastes generated in the offices. The Group adopted
the following practices to reduce paper waste at source, so to
reduce the production of non-hazardous waste:

e Print only when needed and encourage duplex printing; and

e Rewuse single-sided used papers, envelops, folders and carton
in office.

Noise

The most significant environmental effects due fo noise pollution
were created by the activities of the mine in Zhangjiaba, particularly
through ifs stripping operations. All siripping activities are carried
out in compliance with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise and
other applicable regulafions.

Target settings

The major source of emissions is from the combustion of pefrol and
the use of electricity. With the implementation of energy-saving
measures, the Group aims to maintain the GHG emission intensity at
about 0.5 tonne per million of revenue in the next five years.
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Compliance of laws and regulations

The Group constantly updated itself with the local legislation and
standards for environmental protection and assessed whether these
legislations and standards are related to the business of the Group
and the Group's compliance status. During the year, the Group
strictly complies with the relevant national environmental laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the followings:

e the Environmental Protection law of the People’'s Republic of
China

e the low of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Impact Assessment

e the law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution

e the law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution

e the law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, and

e the law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution.
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Use of resources

The Group makes use of resources efficiently and conscientiously
in order to promote sustainable development. Staff are urged to
engage in environmentally friendly practices through their daily
routines, and the Group takes a proactive stance in monitoring

iR~ HBKREIGHRS

EREA

AEESKBEMFNBER UREMTIFE
ER- ASEFIRCEIBERRBMARBT LIE
FOUYREREREEELE RNEBER
Al [E YA KL e B 22022 K2021F12A31

its waste output while encouraging the application of recyclable HIEFE Z HFEEHZEWT

materials. The following consumption data were recorded in the

year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Resources Unit 2022 2021
BERER By 2022% 20214
Petrol kWh 159,845 18,683
i TR

Diesel kWh 0 1,693
Sm T R B

Electricity kWh 19,039 21,009
B TR

Total energy consumption kWh 178,884 271,167
BEREREE T R B

Energy consumption intensity kWh/million of revenue 2,485 Q04
BEIRHEEE FTERE "BETHRA

Water Litre 362 -
7K H

Water consumption infensity L/million of revenue 5 -
FKRER A ETEA

The Group is committed to upholding a high environmental standard
in order to promote environmental friendliness. Throughout the
Group, the following actions have been implemented to reduce
energy consumption:

- maintain optional room temperature at 26° C;
- switch off idle electrical appliances and lightings; and
- car pooling arrangement for employees in the Mine.

Water

The mine water is sourced from groundwater, so obtaining sufficient
water for the Group's needs was not a problem. The volume,
quality, and availability of the resources were more than satisfactory.
As a result, there is no data regarding water consumption. For
Our offices in China, Hong Kong, and the UK, the use of water is

limited to basic hygiene and cleaning requirements.
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Packaging materials

Knowing that single-use plastic is causing exfensive damage to
the environment, the Group is defermined to properly manage our
usage of the materials in our packaging. Utilizing plastic packaging
is unavoidable when running a virtual restaurant business. In order
fo cut down on plastic waste, we remain committed to reducing our
reliance on plastic materials and employing sustainable materials for
our packaging.

RiR- HEBKE]

oS

BRME
EEE(‘;‘%%D-"“I‘@LW*# SHRFEEKERZES
AEBRALZEERBRMHNER ALK

ERLLEREGE ERENEREEA#
RH BRI BRET HMEERNBREY
PRMEOKE YRAATHEMHETE
o

In light of the increased need for takeout services during the ZEREBEHEIIBRFEAOT KL M NEH
pandemic, the Group has worked tirelessly to reduce the amount TR D BEMEFERE A ERREW K&
of packaging materials being used. The Group will continue to BEEED T RRTEZE A A £W KB KIR
analyze the potential for completely switching to biodegradable R B & A EF B AT RE 1% - W M )T AR 2~ B
and ecofriendly packaging materials in the future, and will focus RIEHIZEMEHOFEGER -
on reducing, fracking and controlling the sustainable use of such
materials.
Unit 2022 2021
By 2022%F 20214
Carton box Pcs 10,000 Not applicable
NN 18 iE A
Packaging material infensity Pcs/revenue (RMB'm) 139 Not applicable
BEMHRERATE B/ B8 TAREKE EH

Environment and natural resources

As mining operators, the Group is in the business of exfracting
natural resources at the Zhangjiaba Mine. The Management of the
Group believes every practicable effort had been made to ensure
their collateral impact to the surrounding environment is kept to a
minimum. Right at the planning stage of the excavation the location
is sef to be outside the urban planning area, and does not involve
designated areas such as nature reserves, scenic spots and cultural
relics {under preservation protection). Further, there are no farmlands
are located near the mining sites.

It is the firm belief of the Management that both the effective and
efficient use of energy and due care to the environment are vital for
sustainable development of the Group. Hence the Group closely
monitors and reviews the relevant data from time fo time, minimizing
the negative effect to the environment and maximizing its business
development and operation at the same time.
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As a marble production enterprise, the Company strictly complies
with the Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the People'’s
Republic of China, the Water and Soil Conservation law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Provisions on land Reclamation
and other relevant regulations and formulated environmental impact
assessment report and a water and soil conservation plan targeting
water and soil loss and ecological damage, so as to avoid impacts
to local plant and animal communities.

In order to contribute to the nation’s efforts in reducing greenhouse
gas emissions, the Company hired professional consultants to
implement their ecoriendly resforation scheme in the mine. During
the year, 150 frees have been planted.

Climate change

The Group recognises that climate change can have significant
implications for operations.

Governance The Board of Directors keeps watch over our
risk mitigation and examines our ESG risks. Our
Group Sustainability Committee, chaired by our
CEO, assesses and manages sustainability issues.
The ESG working group reports regularly to the
Board of Directors on sustainability matters and
manage our climate-related issues on a day-fo-day
basis with the support from execution groups and
operafions units and departments.

Strategy The consequences of climate change, such as
higher temperatures, rising sea levels, alterations
in precipitation, and more frequent extreme
weather occurrences, will have shortterm and

long-term impacts on our operations.
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SOCIAL

The system covers recruitment, rank management, remuneration,
fraining, confidentiality and other areas. The Group endeavors to
ensure that their employees are cognizant of their own rights and
obligations, so that they may adhere to the system and execute their
duties lawfully in order to protect the rights and interests of both
parties.

Employment

Although the Group has faced challenges from a downtrend
economic environment, the staff is willing 1o work with the Group
to tackle these unfavourable, adverse conditions. The Group has
established a policy to ensure that the rights of each staff member
are profected no matter the circumstances. The employment
contract of the Group specifies the terms including compensation
and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and other benefits and
welfare for our staff. Every staff member of the Group has signed
their respective employment contract with the Group. The promotion
policies of the Group are based on the performance of the relevant
staff in their position on annual basis.

Working hours, rest periods and leave paid

Five-day work arrangement is adopted to facilitate work-life balance.
In addition to all rest days and statutory holidays as specified in
local laws and regulations, employees are entitled to paid annual
leaves, maternity leaves, patfernity leaves, marriage leaves and
compassionate leaves. Overtime work compensation is given to
staff for doing overtime work.
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Anti-discrimination and equal opportunity

The Group actively promotes a diverse workplace where people
from diverse backgrounds are valued and respected. The Group
adopfs equal employment opportunity policies and freats all the
employees equally. Employment, remuneration and promotion are
not under the influence of social identities, such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction
and marital status.

REBERFEHE

AEEREBHEESZTICOTESH TRE
SHAERBRINERLEE - AEERK
FERBREERE H2RERE -—RFAC-E
B FMEEAAZER Rik BHE 15
REBEM0 - F R MEEREA - BUA K B K4 3k

MNELBHETE -

Workforce  Staff turnover
distribution rate (%)
EIRMHM BIRKE(%
Total number of staff BETHAH 29 14%
Gender =I5
Male B 22 11%
Female pegis 7 27%
Job position 2234
Senior management SRERRE 10 -
Management BERAE 10 11%
General staff LTMET 9 33%
Age group B F heAd Sl
18-30 18-30m% 3 40%
31-50 31-508% 16 32%
51 or above 51k A £ 10 -
Region 1Z A [
PRC s 7 24%
Hong Kong BB 15 -
United Kingdom R 7 58%
Employment type e AR
Full time £l 28 14%
Part time pigi ] -

HEESAREZERERAF
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Compliance of laws and regulations BFEREER

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with AEBWTEBBETRNEEERY T AR KE
the labour laws and regulations, including, but not limited to the (R AIBER  BEEEEREZRBEBRBERAT
following: B

PRC
a3

Labour Contract Law
(BE&RE)
Labour Law
(BEE)
Employment Ordinance
AV
Minimum wage ordinance
(RIETE GG
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
(Bt RTEE &)
Employment Rights Act 1996
19965 (I EHEAE)
National Minimum Wage Act 1998
19984 (BHKETEE)
The Equality Act 2010
2010%F (FZHX)

Hong Kong
B

United Kingdom
HE

60  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Health and Safety

The health and safety of employees have always been the Group's
priority of productions. To mitigate the risks of workplace events and
to emphasise the significance of employee health, the Group had
created a variety of regulations and profocols. These are included in
their Staff Handbook and is distributed to employees and enforced
by their line management and human resource department. Most
of their mining workers are hired through a third party agency. The
Group has specified that these agencies must follow the same safety
and health profocols as they would with their own employees, or
even stricter standards.

It is mandatory for all kitchen staff to follow safety guidelines and
receive instruction for the correct use of the machinery or equipment.
A safety monitoring system has been put in place and people are
assigned to each stage of production to make sure safety regulations
are being followed.

iR~ HBKREIGHRS

RERZZ
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Occupational health and safety statistics 2022 2021 2020
BERERZEZSEE 2022%F 20214 20204
Number of lost days due to work injury HIEmERHNITIERH Nil 2 Nil = Nil =
Number of work-related fatalities EIT T A Nil 2 Nil = Nil &=

Compliance of laws and regulations

The Group has established and stringently implemented its internal
safety and health policies in line with the relevant laws and
regulations during the year, including but not limited to:

BFEEER
FR-AEECREBEEBIZEZRETEAZD
TR RBERRLBEERT BEEEER
BEEFIRRY:

PRC ®  Production Safety law
ey . (LREEZE)
e law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases

d (hEARKMBEB B AE)
®  Regulation on WorkRelated Injury Insurances

. (THERBRIEH)D

Hong Kong o
BB .

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
B2 2 RERIEO)

e Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance

. (B ERTE
Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974
1074 (TERBEERLZ 2FES)

United Kingdom .
B .

HE S AREERARA T
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Development and Training

Management believes that keeping their employees up to dafe with
emerging frends and standards plays a fundamental role in business
growth. Therefore, the Group encourages employees to develop
and improve their skill through training continuously. The Group is
knowledgeable about the potential long-term benefits of training for
sustainable development, both for the Group and its employees.
Accordingly, the Group offers directors fraining programs on
current Group advancements and essential skills. Furthermore, it will
periodically evaluate these programs and assess their success. The
Group places emphasis on communication between management
and employees, honouring and considering their ideas and
thoughts.

Training details of director and staff for the year ended 31
December 2022:

iR~ HBKREIGHRS

R KB

EEERS BREERFTHIEBY RE
EEXBERTHEZERMFER B -AE
EZBREREBEBBITEHBERRIEGRKEE-
AEBEFRABIERAEEREEBAFE
HRMNBERMEE A AREREFR
HERBASEENER REATENEIR
Beltih BEHMHZSEREETHELFG
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55 9 1 -

Average  Percentage of
training hours  staff attended
attended training
2 izl
F 19 55 9 B B ETASK
Gender gkl
Male Eegis 43 50%
Female sl 20 71%
Job position BB
Senior management aRERRE 13 20%
Management EEBAR 74 40%
General staff WAL 20 100%
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Labour Standards

The Group is committed to uphold the labour rights of staff and has
established a compliant mechanism for staff to report any labour
violations. The Management believes that the Group has complied
with relevant labour standards for the year ended 31 December
2022. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
disputes between the company and ifs staff has been recorded.

no labour

The Group strictly forbids any unlawful employment and child labour.
All employees must meet the required minimum age. We adhere fo
all laws and regulations related to child labour and forced labour,
which include:

RiR- HEBKE]
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R
AEEBNPRREEINSHEN YET
ETHHFEINBSERMZEREDEN B
MoBERERA BE20229F12A31HIEF
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FI2ANALFE - ARAEEE T ZHM
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AEBBEEEFAFEZEREEREINT R
FMTERELANTARENREFR -RME
SHAEEBRELET LRSS THER LA
HoBh:

° Law of the PRC on Protection of Minors

. (hEARKMBERKFE AREE)

®  Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour

®  Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance

PRC *  labour Confract law
a3 . (BEAERZE)

e labour law

o (BEE)
Hong Kong o Employment Ordinance
BB . (B GED

*  Minimum wage Ordinance

. (HIETEHH

. (BRILEREIRE)

. (R Bl R EE 5 ERG])D
United Kingdom e Employment Rights Act 1996
HRE . 10965 (RIBEHEFE)

e National Minimum Wage Act 1998

o 1998F (EXR&

EITEE)

e Children and Young Persons Act 1933
o 1933FKREHEEFFIX)

Supply Chain Management

The purchasing department will target suppliers with reputation
in industry, and then make selections through comparing quotas
and negotiation. The Group also performs background check to
their potential miners according fo effective procedures in order fo
prevent fraud during the selection process.
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We adhere to stringent evaluation and selection of suppliers to BB FHEEFERBEHEN URER
guarantee the quality of our food supply. Cost, quality, variation, MEEMNEE KA B2 S REAKRYT A
and hazard are all factors that are considered when selecting ki HEEEEENRAZ - TEBEEHER
vendors. All potential suppliers must successfully pass the food HEKNBBEBRMEZEEERTH -HER
safety scrutiny and evaluations. Suppliers must continually meet both  HZBRFEFE EHEZR R EA 2 IKIZE T
the local regulations and pertinent global standards. Any provider A AR &R EHEEFATE W AT KIES
falling short of the specifications may have their contract forcibly — #9° FR - KL BS0H L ER -

terminafed. During the year, we had a total of 50 suppliers.

Distribution of suppliers

HEE D

China ®
RE HE
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In selecting contractor and equipment suppliers, the Group
takes into account various factors, such as (i] quality of services;
[ii) contracting costs; (i) safety management; and (iv] relevant
qualifications (if applicable). The Group requires contractors fo
maintain a high standard of quality for the services provided, and
to comply with and have in ploce adequate occupational health
and safety and environmental protection procedures in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and safety requirements

imposed by the relevant PRC government authorities.

All exploration and stripping activities of the mine are carried out
by a reputable local qualified service provider which comply with
government regulation during the year ended 31 December 2022.
The Group does not foresee its source of supplies to be a potential
threat to the group operation.

Product Responsibility

Quality assurance and recall procedures

We aim to source and deliver delicacy while adhering to sfrict
quality and safety standards. Food ordering has been made
easier and more convenient for customers with our website
(https://burgogi.co.uk/) and other online platforms. This helps

customers order online and send our meal kits or gift card to others.

All the meal kits are packed with ice packs and temperature-
controlled bags, and insulated boxes to ensure the quality of food
remains unchanged throughout fransport. Our team has achieved
and would continue to pay full effort in meeting the standards of

obtaining AA accreditation of BRCGS.

When customer complaints are received in relation to the quality
of our products, we would investigate and review the products and
recall them if food safety issues are identified. During the year, none
of our meal kits has been recalled for safety and health reasons.

The quality of marble related products depend on the quality of
the mine as the Group has not further processed the beige marble
blocks. The Group facilitates customer on-site inspection and tesfing
to ensure the quality of the marble blocks are in line with their
expectations.
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Customer satisfaction

Customer may provide their feedback via our customer service
hotlines, emails, websites, social media. We gather and review the
feedback on our food and services.

Data privacy

The Group acknowledges the importance of data privacy. We fully
understand our accountability on protecting personal and sensitive
information of our customers, employees and business partners.
Cusfomer information is collected only when it is necessary. We will
continuously conduct regular reviews on our data management and
provide fraining fo our employees.

During FY2022, the Group did not receive any significant
complaints regarding breaches of customer privacy.

Intellectual property rights

The Group is dedicated to protecting and enforcing ifs intellectual
property rights. The Group's infellectual property rights are mainly
comprised of information management systems, ftrademarks,
proprietary know-how and secret recipes.

The Group is currently active in the virtual restaurant space,
operating the “Burgogi” restaurant and the “Bigfoodie” takeaway
order platform in the UK. Additionally, 4 Company logos have been
trademarked in Hong Kong. The Group routinely evaluates potential
infringement of its intellectual property rights by external entities.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During FY2022, the Group was not aware of any third-party
infringement on its trademarks and has fully comply with relevant
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Trade Marks
Ordinance (Cap. 559 of the laws of Hong Kong), the Copyright
Ordinance (Cap. 528 of the laws of Hong Kong) and Data
Protection Act 2018 of the United Kingdom.

Anti-Corruption

With regards fo compliance with relevant laws and regulations in
different regions, the Group maintains a code of business integrity. A
system with good moral integrity and the anti-corruption mechanism
is the cornerstone for the sustainable and healthy development of
the Group. The Group also prohibits staff from receiving gifts of
excessive amount from customers and suppliers. The Group fakes a
zero-tolerance approach fo corruption and bribery and is committed
to acting professionally, fairly and with integrity in all our business
dealings.
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Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure

We encourage transparency and honesty, and provide channels for
reporting the misconduct or malpractices. Any suspicious transactions
after investigation would be reported to the relevant governing body
by the responsible officer.

Anti-corruption Training

In order fo guarantee the alignment and delivery of comprehensive
communication fo all employees, anfi-corruption fraining is held
annually. In the year 2022, all directors took part in the online
training sessions provided by The Independent Commission
Against Corruption (ICAC) with an average fraining duration of
approximately two hours. Subjects such as anti-corruption, business
ethics, integrity and whistleblowing were all included in the training
sessions. There are no concluded legal cases regarding corruption
practices brought against the Group or its employees during the

year of 2022.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year of 2022, the Group complied with the relevant laws
and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering,
including, but not limited to:
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PRC e  Company law
a3 . \UNCIV
®  Anfi-Unfair Competition Law
. (RAEEBFE)
Hong Kong o Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
BB . B L BR B 15 1)

®  Anfi-Money laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance

. HTBRERRMHD FTESEEREN)

United Kingdom ®  Bribery Act 2010
RE *  2010F ARMBEE)

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Contributing to society is a part of the Group's sustainable
development strategy. The Group is committed fo providing career
opportunities to locals and promoting the development of the
community's economy. The Group fully understands and appreciates
the importance of and the need for community investment. One
remarkable aspect fully appreciated by the local community is that
most employees of the mine come from nearby villages. The Group
is committed fo developing more community investment opportunities
in its development plans. Through dayto-day contact with community
officials and leaders, the Group explores and examines how the
Group can engage the community.
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The Board hereby presents its report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the mining, processing and frading of
marble stones and marblerelated products. During FY2022, there
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities.

The principal activities of the Company's major subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 fo the consolidated financial statfements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are provided
in the Chairman Statement on pages 7 and 10 and Management

Discussion and Analysis on pages 11 to 20 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
are sef out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 89 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the

year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not hold any major property development and/or
sale or for investment purposes as at 31 December 2022.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are sef ouf in note 33
fo the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis fo existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated
stafements of changes in equity on page 92 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has no reserves available
for distribution to shareholders in accordance with the Company's
Bye-laws (31 December 2021: Nil).

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years are set out on page 176 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Yonghui

Mr. Zhang Weijun

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Mr. Zhang Mian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Ruimin

Mr. Andreas Varianos

Ms. Pei Bing (resigned on 30 June 2022)

Ms. Zu Rui (oppointed on 29 September 2022)
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RETIREMENT

In accordance with clause of the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall refire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to refirement at an
annual general meetfing af least once every three years. A circular
containing the biographical details of the director candidates
eligible for re-election and the notice of annual general meefing will
be sent to the shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Byelaws, Mr. Zhang Weijun
and Ms. Zhang Cuiwei will refire by rofation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS" INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this report, the Directors confirm that in relation
fo their profile, no information is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years from the date of his/her
appointment. Such service contract can be determined by either
party serving af least one month’s notice prior to the expiry of the
term.

None of the Directors (including any Director who may be proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting) has
entered into any service agreement with the Company which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of each Director is approved at general meeting.
Other emoluments will be determined by the Remuneration
Committee and the Board with reference to the duties,
responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of the
Group. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular review
and monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the
levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are sef out on pages 21 to 23 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends in
Hong Kong and China, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject
to the profitability of the Group, the Group may also distribute
a discrefionary bonus fo ifs employees as an incenfive for their
contribution to the Group. The Group has adopted a share option
scheme for its employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF Scheme”] under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme [the “Retirement Scheme”) organised by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC, under which the
Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of the payroll
of its employees to the Retirement Scheme. Save as disclosed
above, the Group has not operated any other refirement benefits
schemes for the Group's employees.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's largest
customer from marble slag business accounted for 99.0% (2021:
79.0%) of tofal sales of the Group. The Group's sales derived from
the five largest customers in virtual restaurant business accounted
for less than 5% of total sales for FY2022 as the virtual restaurant
business has a large and diverse customer base.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's five largest
100%) of
total purchases of the Group and the largest supplier/subcontractor
accounted for 98.3% (2021: 75.1%) of total purchases of the

Group.

suppliers and subcontractors accounted for 99.0% (2021:

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the Company's issued capital had any inferest in the five largest
customers. To the best of knowledge of the Board, it is not aware of
any relationship among the major customers.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
As at 31
the Directors in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

December 2022, the interests and short positions of

Company or any of its associated corporations |within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to provisions of Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors or chief executive
have taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFOJ; (b)
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, fo be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were set out
below:
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(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of the
Company

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each held
FEEEREECOIBIZ2EEREE

(a)

RAEQRTEBERZHER

Percentage of
the issued

share capital

Name of Director ~ Capacity Direct interest  Deemed interest Total interest  of the Company
BARDRAE BT
BEEpA 514 EEER REREER R BRAFDL
Zheng Yonghui la) Interest of a controlled - 14,399,877 14,399,877 10.17%
corporation (Note)
Bk E (o) XIEEEER (F&E)
[b) Beneficial owner 7,981,000 - 7,981,000 5.64%
(ME\EﬁA
7,981,000 14,399,877 22,380,877 15.81%
Note: s

The 14,399,877 ordinary shares of the Company were directly owned by
Oasis Tycoon Investments Limited of which all interests are directly controlled by
Mr. Zheng Yonghui.

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the
Company

Details of the interests of the Directors in the share options
of the Company are separately disclosed under the section

headed “Share Option Scheme”.

(c) Short position
As at 31 December 2022,

executive nor their associates had any short positions in any

none of Directors or the chief

shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period did the
Company or any of its holding company or subsidiaries participate
in any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executive
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to
acquire any interests and short positions of shares or underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporation |within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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DIRECTORS” RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquires such rights in any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors are aware that any
person (not being Directors or chief executive of the Company) has
an inferest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24 January 2011
(the “2011 Scheme”), which was terminated on 29 June 2020.
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General
Meeting held on 29 June 2020, a new share option scheme (the
"2020 Scheme”) was adopted. A summary of the 2020 Option

Scheme is set out below:

Purpose

The purpose of 2020 Option Scheme is to give the eligible persons
an opportunity o have a personal stake in the Company and help
motivate them fo optimise their future performonce and efficiency
to the Group and/or to reward them for their past contributions,
fo aftract and refain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships
with such eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or
success of the Group, and additionally in the case of executives, to
enable the Group to affract and refain individuals with experience
and obi|it\/ and/or to reward them for their past contributions.

Participants of the scheme

The Board may grant options to any person being a director
(including independent non-executive director], employee,
shareholder, supplier, customer, consultant, business partner and
adviser of any member of the Group.
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Maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all opfions to be granted under the 2020 Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregafe exceed
10% of the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of the
Listing Date. Subject to as provided in the 2020 Option Scheme,
the Company may seek approval from its shareholders in a
general meeting to refresh the 10% limit (not exceeding 10% of
the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of approval by
the shareholders of the Company in a general meefing) and grant
options beyond such 10% limit, but the total number of shares which
may be issued under the 2020 Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group must not exceed 30% of the number of shares
in issue from time fo time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No option may be granted to any one eligible person such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granfed to that person in any 12-month
period exceeds 1% of the number of shares in issue of the Company
from time to time. The Company may seek approval from its
shareholders in a general meeting to grant options to the eligible
person exceeding 1% of the shares in issue of the Company in
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant.

Period of the share to be taken up under an option
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance
by the eligible person concerned for a period of 28 days from the
date of offer upon payment of HK$ 1.0 for each grant of options.

Minimum holding period of an option

Subject to the terms and conditions in the 2020 Option Scheme,
the Board may determine there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised and no performance
target which needs to be achieved by the grantee before the option
can be exercised.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any partficular option shall be
such price as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at
the time of grant of the relevant opfion but the subscription price
shall not be less than whichever is highest of (1) the nominal value
of the shares; (2) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and
(3) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days (as
defined in the Listing Rules) immediately preceding the date of offer.
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Life of 2020 Option Scheme
The 2020 Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of 10

years from the date of adoption.

Details of outstanding and movement of share options under the
2011 Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022
are as follows:

20204 f3 B fE 5T I AV A IR
2020%F R B HE ST 1S B ER 4 B AR E 1 O%F
AR R 2 -

HE2022F12A31BLEFE 201 1FER
BB TRITENEREREZEHNFEN
T

As at Grant Lapsed Adjusted As at
1 January during during during 31 December
Grantees Date of grant Exercise price 2022 the year the year the year 2022
R2022%F R2022%F
ARA R AH T8 1R1H FREW FRARK FRAE 12A31H
(note 1)
(KtaE1)
Director
=z
Zhang Cuiwei 26 June 2014 note 3 HK$34.740 1,731,663 - - (1,645,080 86,583
REM 2014F6R268 M3 34.740% T
12 Janvary 2015 note 4 HK$32.980 2,424,329 - - (2,303,113) 121,216
2015F1R1268 M4 32.980% T
Zhang Mian 15 April 2019 note 7 HK$2.344 28,320,827 - - [26,904,78¢) 1,416,041
£ 2019F4R158 M7 2.344% 7T
Other
Hity
Other employees Q June 2014 note 2 HK$34.740 3,290,160 - (346,333 (2,796,638) 147189
HitfE S 2014%6R9A P2 34.740% T
26 June 2014 nofe 3 HK$34.740 1,731,663 - - (1,645,080 86,583
2014F6R268 M3 34.740% T
19 December 2014 note 5 HK$32.680 3,116,994 - - (2,961,145) 155,849
2014128198 M5 32.680% T
12 Janvary 2015 note 4 HK$32.980 2,424,329 - - (2,303,113) 121,216
2015F1R128 M4 32.980% T
23 November 2017 note 6 HK$1.944 47,200,000 - - (44,840,000 2,360,000
2017118238 M6 1.944% 7T
15 April 2019 nofe / HK$2.344 169,924,962 - - (161,428,716 8,496,246
2019F4R158  H#H7 2.344% 7T
260,164,927 - (346,333) (246,827,671) 12,990,923
Vested at end of period 260,164,927 12,990,923

REXBE
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Note:

1. Due to Share Consolidation, adjustments were made to the number of
outstanding share options and the exercise price on 21 December 2022.
Details of adjustments in relation to the share option scheme refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2022.

2. The options were exercisable from @ June 2014 to 8 June 2024 (both dates

inclusive).

3. The options were exercisable from 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024 (both dates

inclusive).

4. The options were exercisable from 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024

[both dates inclusive).

5. The options were exercisable from 30 December 2014 to 18 December 2024
[both dates inclusive).

6. The options were exercisable from 23 November 2017 to 22 November 2027
[both dates inclusive).

7. The options were exercisable from 15 April 2019 to 14 April 2029 (both dates

inclusive).

8. The Company recorded the fair value of these share options as staff cost in the
income statement. The Company will record the nominal value of the shares
which is HK$0.01 per share issued pursuant fo the exercise price of the share
options as additional share capital and the Company will record the excess of
the exercise price of the share options over nominal value of the shares in its
share premium account. Any share options which has lapsed or been cancelled

will be deducted from the balance of the share options.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts with Directors, no confracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

HEESAREZERERAF

T

B H & OF - R20224F 12821 B HRITEREAR &
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SHEARAHBHAR2022612A198HRE -

ZEBRER2014F6A9B8 £2024F6A8A (B R
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ZEBIRENR2014F6 8260 £2024F6A258 (&5
EMARBEEN) A TITME-

ZEBBREN2015F1A12B 220241273158 (&
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ZEBRENR2014F12A30H £2024F12818H
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ZEBRENR2017F11 A238 £2027F 11 A221
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ZEBERER2010F48158 F2029F4 /148 (&
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance
in relation fo the business of the Group, to which the Company,
its_holding companies, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group's business that competes or competed or is or was likely
fo compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's business at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up fo and
including the date of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At any time during the year ended 31 December 2022, there were
no connected transactions or confinuing connected transactions
of the Company as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Llisting Rules. None of the related party transactions
constituted a connected transaction or continuing connected
fransaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the directors. Having made specific
enquiry fo all the Direcfors, they confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
throughout FY2022, and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with such required standard of dealings regarding
securities transactions by Directors throughout FY2022.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the memorandum and Byelaws of the Company, the
Directors, managing Directors, alternate Directors, oudifors, secretary
and other officers, for the time being, acting in relation to the
affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the exertion of their duty.

The permitted indemnity provision is currently in force for the benefit
of the Directors as defined and required by Section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)
and has been in force throughout the year ended 31 December
2022. The Company has not arranged for appropriafe insurance
cover for Directors” and officers” liabilities in respect fo legal acfions
against ifs Direcfors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. The reasons for this decision is elaborated on page 25 of
the corporate governance report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries or holding
company or subsidiary of the holding company has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year

ended 31 December 2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to the Share
Option Scheme, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked
agreements that (i] will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
or [ii] require the Company fo enter info any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares during the year ended
31 December 2022 or had subsisted at the end of year ended 31
December 2022.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The shares of the Company were listed on 18 March 2011
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Based on publicly available

on the

information and fo the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
this report of directors under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Elite Partners CPA
limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment in the forthcoming annual general meetfing of the
Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which consists of three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the Group's
consolidated financial stafements for the year ended 31 December
2022, including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed with auditors in relation to the infernal
control and financial reporting matters of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Zheng Yonghui
Executive Director

28 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
1R E5HEh¥RS

elite
- partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the shareholders of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with

limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 89 to 175, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ["HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Audifors Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

BRETER
REBFFTASBRERMANEXZHE NI
MBRF ARG EYBRRPREENET R
BPEEFBERBEAVBRRAMA LK E
AREREHFER MIAERUFTFTRERS
BRER-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHNESANMAEEZEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets

ME - BERRE ERAREEUAREFEENREF

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's
property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB138,473,000, rightof-use assets of approximately
RMB706,000 and a mining right classified as infangible
assets of approximately RMB33,414,000 relating to
the Group's cash-generating unit (the "CGU"] regarding
sale of marble and marblerelated products. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, no impairment losses
had been recognised on the Group's property, plant
and equipment, rightof-use assets and intangible assefs
respectively. Details are sef out in notes 17, 19 and 18
fo the consolidated financial statements.
R2022%12A31H: EBEXEENETUE BER
HHE(HWAK®138,473,000) ERAEEE (K
ARBE706,000) R BRETVEENRER (X
AR®33,414,000T) - B8 EXEEHHEEX
BARAEAHBERNRSELEM ([(ReEL
BEf|)BM-BE2022F12A31RLFE: &
SETERDE BEMRE EREEEANER
EERARNEBR - FHFBANGA M BREKM
17 19Kk18 -

The Group had engaged an independent valuer to
assist the management of the Company in esfimating
the recoverable amount of the CGU which requires
significant judgment to be made by the management of
the Company.

EEEEZE 2B UGEMBE BERAREEE
HAEHR BELARETEEFELERHENRESELE
iz 7] W [B] & %8 4 Ak & e
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Our procedures in relafion to the management’s impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment, rightof-use
assets and intangible assets included the following:
BPMEEEEDE BELARG ERAEEENAR
B EENRENEARTHEFEREATSIE:

- Obtained cash flow forecasts prepared by the
management of the Company and assessed
the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions used for the preparation of the
forecasts (e.g. estimated reserves of mineral, sales
volume, unit selling price, estimated expenses and
discount rate etc.):

- ESHh SERAREEEREMNRaRERA
W ERHEERN (PIMEARERE HE  #H
EEE BARIXERMIRIZ)MAHTEER
RE B EE

- Evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of an independent valuer and the method
used for estimating the recoverable amount of the
CGU;

- RIEBMEEMNERKT BEORTHEAUAR
R ELEURIKSEMANFE:
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BRETSE @

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BMNESTONMEREZEE (&)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (Continued)

ME BERRE ERAREEUAREFEENREML (8

We had identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment, rightof-use assets and infangible
assetfs relafing to the CGU as a key audit matter
because significant management judgment was used in
determining key assumptions.
BPCKERSELEMBERNYE BELERE -
ERABREEANNETLEENREN G REEET
FE REAREEEXNHETERRIRBAELESR
all i

Impairment assessment on trade receivables

B 5 W OR KR E R

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade
receivables of approximately RMB64,305,000, net of
allowance for credit losses.

M2022F12A31B EBEX5EEZESERKRELR
AR¥64,305000t (MBREEBERME) -

HEESAREZERERAF

- Discussed with the independent valuer the
appropriateness of the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating the recoverable
amount of the CGU and performed certain
procedures fo assess data and assumptions used in
the valuation; and

- HBUVMGEMSRGEARZELABCIRE S
BRAINHDERBRONBEEL LHTET
REFFEEETANESRELRR &

- Checked, on a sample basis, the mathematical
accuracy of calculation of the recoverable amount
of the CGU.

- WEZRERSELBMATKRODESEE AN
BEERE -

Our procedures in relation fo management’s impairment
assessment on frade receivables included:

It B IR E S B 5 & UK IE AT E 80 RE AT (4 P B3
TORFEEATEE:

- Understood and evaluated the modelling methodologies
for expected credit losses measurement, assessed
the reasonableness of the model selection and key
measurement parameters defermination;

- THRIFHEHEEBRBRAENEETE
HRANEELRERTEZ2HNETCRESE

- Checked, on a sample basis, the aged profile of the
trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 to
the underlying financial records and post yearend
setlements to bank receipts;

- HMEZEMN2022F12A318E8 FEWKIERN
R BEREEAMBLSEARFERRNGEH
1B B R 1T WU
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BRETSE @

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BEMNEFNAEEZSE (R

Impairment assessment on trade receivables (Continued)

5 WK R KR E R (80

Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and the sufficiency
of provision for impairment based on information
including credit profile of different customers, the aged
profile of the trade receivables, historical seftlement
records, subsequent sefilement status, expected tfiming
and amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and
on-going trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-ooking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order fo esfimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.
EEERBITARZLEMARI 85 EEHKENK
BRER BEEERLE RELERL REEER
BRNRHARELCRNEAREERPNFERXSH
REERER L E 5 R RIR Y R] U E 1 KR (E e
FRUEETEHTGH - EBENZEANRETFPE
ERMAEREROENERTENRELEER A
R EFENREREEERE-

We had identified impairment of trade receivables as
a key audit matter because significant judgments had
to be made for the assessment of impairment under the
expected credit loss model.
RMERBESRRREZREIN REREFFE
REARFMEHEEMEEFEREAT ZREAFELERXN
) f o
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Inquired of management for the status of each of the
material trade receivables past due at the end of
the reporting period and corroborated explanations
from management with supporting evidence, such
as undersfood on-going business relationship with
the customers based on trade records, checked
historical and subsequent sefflement records of and
other correspondence with the customers; and
MEEEERARMNBERRCBAHNZTEXR
EZRBRENRATNLEZBREIZEERE
WRE NMEBRRXFCHTHRETFNFESE
BHER ZTREPHNBEEREREERER
HinBAER: &

Assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures
in relation to trade receivables included in the
consolidated financial statements.

i BESBSRAUBMERMEBEEZENN
HNBEEESTRE -
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Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statfements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is moferio”y inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such infernal control
as the directors defermine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend fo liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our obijectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section Q0 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not @
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriafe fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal confrol.

d Obtain an understanding of infernal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT 1% 7 35 51 6 R 5

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report fo the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in o manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obfain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with o statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, action taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that o matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Mr. Wong Ho Kwan with practising cerfificate
number: PO7543.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2023

10/F, 8 Observatory Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FolEaNEMEANGSE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B 22022 12A31H IEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ TR AREF T
REVENUE WA 8 72,289 74,247
Cost of sales $HE AR (45,441) (59,012)
Gross profit EF 26,848 15,235
Other income and gains, net EM U A R USR5 9 2,040 1,092
Selling and distribution expenses $HE RO HAX (8,47¢) (3,733
Impairment losses under expected BHEEREEATZ
credit loss model, net of reversal HEEE (NRED) 10 (41,009) (7,400
Impairment losses recognised MIFERMEERR ZRERRE
in respect of non-financial assefs = (33,541)
Administrative expenses T (38,275) (20,587)
Finance costs B 7% B AN 11 (1,886) (798)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRELAIE B 12 (60,758 49,732)
Income tax expenses FEHAX 14 (1,126) (610)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AAREEAEGEERE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY (61,884) (50,342)
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EEE
ltem that will not be reclassified FTEEHIEEEEMWER
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on franslation of ERESIINEFEENEN Z5E
foreign operations 1,535 (1,193)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AAREEAELEE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR 2HEBERE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (60,349) (51,535)
(Restated)
(&E5)
LOSS PER SHARE (RMB cents) SRER(AR%S)
— Basic and diluted —HEARREE 15 (43.7) (35.6)

HEESAREZERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

el iR E

As at 31 December 2022 7202241283 1H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 2 ARE TR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E RN 17 140,329 144,670
Intangible assets B\ EAE 18 33,414 33,414
Rightof-use assefs EREEE 19 910 1,275
Prepayment and other receivables TEAS 3R K H 4th i I8 24 27,640 51,330
202,293 230,689
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 22 137 82
Trade receivables =) 1 23 64,305 71,267
Prepayment, deposits and BNRE 2Rk
other receivables H U IR 24 22,296 4,383
Prepaid tax BaBE 24 -
Cash and cash equivalents HehBELEEY 25 3,188 7,145
89,950 82,877
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables B 5N IR 26 37,249 15,942
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 91 87
Other payables and accruals E b B R ERTE A 28 31,823 19,969
Amount due to a director e EFEFIA 29 1,138 6,105
Other loans HEfER 30 16,704 7,133
87,005 49,236
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 2,945 33,641
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERABER
LIABILITIES 205,238 264,330

90  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #RE(IFSARIRZE

As at 31 December 2022 1720229 12831H

2022 2021
2022% 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ TR AREF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Other loans HibER 30 1,340 -
Llease liabilities HEAG 27 = 83
Provision for rehabilitation 1EER B 32 2,697 2,697
4,037 2,780
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 201,201 261,550
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRHE
Equity attributable to owners of KAREAAEGESR
the Company
Share capital & A< 33 24,435 24,435
Reserves Gk 34 176,766 237,115
TOTAL EQUITY R 201,201 261,550

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised ~ AN&R & Bf 53R R B R2023F3A28H EEF &
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2023 and are #L/AERK#ETIE THTINESKEES:
signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Cuiwei Zhang Weijun
RE REE
Director Director

oS £
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CUNSULIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADREEAEL
Foreign Retained
currency profits/
Share  Contributed ~ Share option translation  (accumulated
Share capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses)*  Total equity
MERE  REER
& R 15 E* BARE BRERE* > (REER) * BER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBFT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Nofte 34) (Note 34) (Note 34)
(B1i£34) (Hii34) (H1i234)
As at 1 January 2021 R2021F1R18 24,435 221,144 14,480 36,069 12,370) 19,327 313,085
Loss for the year FERE - - - - - [50,342) (50,342
Other comprehensive loss Hithz2EEE - - - - [1,193) - (1,193)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXABBLES - - - - [1,193) [50,342) 51,535)
Lapsed of share options SRR - - - [18,598) - 18,598 -
As at 31 December 2021 and R2021F128318 K
as at 1 January 2022 #®202261R1H 24,435 221,144 14,480 17,471 [3,563) [12,417) 261,550
Loss for the year FEEE = = = - - (61,884) (61,884
Other comprehensive income Hip2milis - - - - 1,535 - 1,535
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FE2EkE/ (BE) 2%
for the year - - - - 1,535 (61,884) (60,349)
lapsed of share options BIREXK - - - (142) - 142 -
As at 31 December 2022 #2022%12831H 24,435 221,144 14,480 17,329 (2,028) (74,159) 201,201

the consolidated statement of financial position.

92 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in

o REFHERBBRESAMBINRERSR
=a

fré 5

ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HelREREE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B 22022 12A31H IEFE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETE
Loss before tax bR # AT S 18 (60,758) 49,732)
Adjustments for: AT EBELFHE:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME WEREHEITE 2,358 7,396
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRREENE 173 696
loss on disposal of property, HEWE BERREBZ
plant and equipment [Ei 3,247 -
loss on unwinding of discount on other receivables — Efh JEUGRIEfR IR AR 2
EtE 9,112 -
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFRBREEZERE 37 -
Impairment losses recognised in respect of IET R E ERER
nonfinancial assets B E A = 33,541
Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, FEHEEEBEEN T2
net of reversal BEEE (NkREE) 41,009 7,400
Interest expenses B X 1,886 798
Interest income FEWA (3) (2)
Imputed interest income on other receivables Hfth e kI 2
il B A B A (868) -
Recovery of trade receivables W e & 5 W I8 (1,000) -
Reversal of provision of other payables H A 8 1 R TR B A 1 ) - (996)
Write-down of inventories FEMR - 363
Operating cash flows before movements HEEREPNZ
in working capital KRERSRE (4,807) (5306)
Change in inventories FTEEE (52) (80)
Change in frade receivables 5B GRIBE ) (28,557) (1,571)
Change in prepayment, deposits and BNRE -EE R
other receivables Hith fe R IR & B (5,976) (521)
Change in trade payables B RMNFIAEH 21,304 7,135
Change in other payables and accruals H A 815t R IR % FE AT
ERE 9,471 2,295
Cash (used in)/generated from operations ESES) (BTA), TS
Be (8,617) 6,722
Tox paid BB (1,150) (1,218)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating RETER (FTA)/ B
activities R&FH (9,767) 5,504

HEESAREZERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS GG IREMSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE BB MRE (1,264) (5,170)
Proceeds on disposal of right-of-use assets HECHAEEEZ
PR1S5KIA 180 -
Loan advance to a third party BERMTE=ZTZER - 429
Repayment of loan receivables BEEKER 415 -
Interest received SR GRS 3
Net cash used in investing activities BRETHMARESFEE (666) (4,739)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
Interest paid EENRAIPSN (274) (494)
Advance from a director EEEX - 579
Advance from other loans HibE 3| 13,977 3,918
Repayment to other loans Tﬁﬁﬁfﬁgm (4,595) -
Repayment fo a director A—REFER (5,063) (589)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBEEN (23) (639)
Net cash generated from financing activities METHREREFHR 3,952 2,779
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND iﬁ.ﬁﬁiﬁﬁg—‘;fﬁ%
CASH EQUIVALENTS H) R (6,481) 3,544
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of E/\\#E%/H\H%)]Zfﬁi&
the reporting period fﬁ/i\:ﬂﬁff@ 7,145 4,254
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXFH B 2,524 (653)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RB|EHRZHEER
AT THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD ReEEY 3,188 7,145

94 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS G IREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as

MERDEEZEBHERNT:

follow:
Accrued
Lease Amount due interest
liabilities  to a director  Other loans payables Total
S
HEEE ENEERE HttER FE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT AR%®T:n
As at T January 2021 R2021F1A1H 803 6,294 3,867 186 11,150
Cash flows: Bene:
Advance from a director EERFR - 579 - - 579
Advance from other loans EMERER - - 3918 - 3918
Repayment of lease liabilities HEEBER (635) - - - (635)
Repayment to a director H—ZEZEN - (589) - - (589)
Repayment of inferest EEMNE - - - (494 (494)
Other noncash movements: Hih e &
Finance cost AR 17 - - 781 798
Exchange differences ERER (15) (179) [652) - (846)
As at 31 December 2021 and R2021F12R318 K
as at 1 January 2022 20221 A1H 170 6,105 7,133 473 13,881
Cash flows: Behie:
Repayment fo other loans EBEMER - - (4,595) - 14,595
Advance from other loans HEFEK - - 13,977 - 13,977
Repayment of lease liabilities HEEBEER (93 - - - (93)
Repayment fo a director R—ZEEEN - (5,063 - - 15,063
Repayment of inferest BEFME - - - (274] (274)
Other non-cash movements: HiEHR e &8
Finance cost AR 6 - - 1,880 1,886
Exchange differences fE 5 E% 8 96 1,529 (152] 1,481
As at 31 December 2022 M2022%12R31H 91 1,138 18,044 1,927 21,200

HEESAREZERERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ml-ﬁ
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412A318 LFE

1.

96

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the "Company”)
and its subsidiaries [collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the production and sale of marble
and marble related products, mainly in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC") and preparing and delivering food for
distribution to consumers under virtual brands in The United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (the “UK").

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies law, Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 29 March
2010 and changed its domicile to Bermuda with limited
10 August 20106. The address of registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed

liability on
in the “Company Information” section to the annual report.

The Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Renminbi ("RMB'O00"), unless otherwise
stated. Hong Kong dollar ("HK$") is the functional currency of
the Company. The directors consider RMB is the appropriate
presentation currency for the users of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as the functional currency of the
Company'’s major subsidiaries in the PRC are RMB.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards
[“IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “"IASB”). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Llisting of Securities [the “listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Hisforical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO IFRSs 3. M REAG T I Wk B 5 e o e
Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily N E R A Rz R 4E ET B BR Bt
effective for the current year B EER
In the current year, the Group has applied the following RREEEMBEHRR AEEREAFE
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB for the first time, EEXERAUNTHEE S EREES
which are mandatorily effective for the annual period MM IR 202241 A1 B R R 2 F E 8
beginning on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the i) 5 Il A2 2 48 & 7T B BR B 75 3 5 AR Al -

consolidated financial statements:

Amendments o IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework BRI RELENFEIN HEIERZ R
ZERT
Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions B R B s o 2 ) 2021F6A30R#E 2
beyond 30 June 2021 F16% 2 155] COVID- 19 B e ER
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds G-l Nx BERRE-HE
before Infended Use F16% 2 B3] R Al 2 PG 508
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling Bl & st R BREAN-BAKK
a Contract FI7RZERT
The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current AN 2 e R & AT B BR B 7% s & ZE R
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial HAEBENRAFERBEFENTB X
performance and positions for the current and prior years BRMRRAR SRR EGHREAME B
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated BEUEERTE-

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO IFRSs

(Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments fo IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

IFRS 17 {including the June Insurance Contracts'
2020 and December
2021 Amendments to
IFRS 17)

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Amendments to IFRS 16 Llease Liabilities in a Sale and leaseback?

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®

Amendments to I1AS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants®

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice

Statement 2
Amendments to IAS 8

Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction!

Amendments to IAS 12

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a dafe to be
determined.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2024.

The directors anticipate that the application of all new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
e has power over the investee;
e is exposed, or has rights, to variable refurns from its

involvement with the investee: and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its refurns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an invesfee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the dafe the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

HEESAREZERERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Foreign currency

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
fransactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetfary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was defermined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the refranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations
are franslated info the presentation currency of the Group
[i.e. RMBJ using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rafes at the date of fransactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve.

Exchange differences relating to the refranslation of the
Group'’s net assefs in HK$ the Group's presentation currency
[i.e. RMB) are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in foreign currency translation
reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the foreign
currency franslation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if #% 3k 2% B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straightline method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end

4.

R & A BOR ()

BRIERTIESN WX BFE RRFEEAAN
BMERZAMERRFREBR (WE)
RER & B BRI 5% 51 B o

FEDRABERENREEMRFAIEASE
HAMBEEERA (KMBRMAKEER)M
BR-AAAERFH RNGEERFTE
FERZMERR T AR - E R/ A

of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in BH X ERRKBEREAR A5
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated ERERMT :

useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 10—20 vears BF 102204

Plant and machinery 5—15 years B K 2% SESINES

Office equipment 5 years N 5%

leasehold improvement Over the lease term HEWMEERE gl

Motor vehicles 4—10 years AE 42104

Mining infrastructure infended to be used for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Such construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when complefed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property, plant and equipment, commences when they are
ready for their infended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “rightof-use assefs”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided inferest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected fo arise from the confinved use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinved)
Stripping costs

Stripping costs incurred during the production phase are
generally considered to create two benefits, being either the
production of inventory or improved access to the ore fo be
mined in the future. Where the benefits are realised in the form
of inventory produced in the period, the production stripping
costs are accounted for as part of the cost of producing those

inventories.

Where the benefits are realised in the form of improved access
fo ore to be mined in the future, the costs are recognised as
a stripping activity asset and is accounted for as an addition
fo, or an enhancement of, the ‘Mining Infrastructure’ in the
consolidated statement of financial position if the following

criteria are met:

[a) it is probable that the future economic benefit (improved
access fo the ore body) associoted with the stripping
activity will flow to the entfity;

(b)  the entity can identify the component of the ore body for
which access has been improved; and

[c]  the costs relating to the stripping activity associated with
that component can be measured reliably.

Other production stripping cosfs are charged fo the profit or
loss as operating cosfs as they are incurred.

The stripping activity asset is initially measured af cost, which
is the accumulation of costs directly incurred to perform
the stripping activity that improves access to the identified
component of ore, plus an allocation of directly attributable
overhead cosfs.

If the costs of the inventory produced and the stripping activity
asset are not separately identifiable, a relevant production
measure is used fo allocate the production stripping costs
between the inventory produced and the siripping activity
assef. This production measure is calculated for the identified
component of the ore body and is used as a benchmark fo
identify the extent to which the additional activity of creating
a future benefit has taken place. The Group uses the expected
volume of waste extracted compared with the actual volume
for a given volume of ore production of each component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if #% 3k 2% B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Stripping costs (Confinued)

The stripping activity asset is subsequently depreciated using
the unit of production ["UOP") method over the life of the
identified component of the ore body that became more
accessible as a result of the stripping activity. The stripping
activity asset is then carried af cost less depreciafion and any

impairment losses.

Mining rights

Mining rights which classified as intangible assefs are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Mining rights include the cost of acquiring mining
licenses, exploration and evaluation costs fransferred from
exploration rights and assets upon determination that an
exploration property is capable of commercial production, and
the cost of acquiring inferests in the mining reserves of existing
mining properties. The mining rights are amortised by using
UOP method based on the proved and probable reserves of
the mines. Mining rights are written off to profit or loss if the
mining property is abandoned.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the confract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
fime in exchange for consideration.

For confracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions
of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a confract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Shortterm leases and leases of low-valve assets

fn S Al 5 ¥R 2= Pl 53

HREFFBUOR 2
HE@®
REBEERBA (8)
HHHEREEEEHE

HREBERrAREFRI2EANE
METESEEEERNNAE AE.
BEIMEEE A5ERACHPEE
ERHRE - AKEBTYEEEEEMNE
ERERHE EMHENEEEBEE
HENHEMNRERESZNEHAER

The Group applies the shortterm lease recognition exemption
to leases of offices, warehouse, plant and machinery that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assefs. lease
payments on shortterm leases and leases of low-value assefs

are recognised as expense on a straightline basis over the AR e
lease term.
Rightofuse assets &L E

EREEEKRABRRE:

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease ° HEBBENVBRTESE:
liability;
o any lease payments made at or before the ° REERK BB ZAIELNER
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; HENT BREMSNEANEES
BE:
e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and s AFAEBEANETMADBEEKA:
54
®  an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in e AEERHKBKELABHREBEE &

FHEBEEMEMAKHEBEER
JR 2= 0 16 R B 1R A PT AR TE BOGIR RE
A A B fh AR o

dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

155 3 #E & B 1 AR AR A R AT B ROR
EERTE THEEAB2ENTE

remeasurement of lease liabilities. EHFZE -

Right-of-use assefs are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

AREHERKAERESISHBE
EEEMMAERNERABEEMS A%
B HERGAREEERFRE
REEERTE -EHMIBRT  ERE
BEMUBERENEMGE A ERFHE

Right-of-use assefs in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, rightof-use assets are
depreciated on a straightline basis over the shorter of its

estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item

on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if #% 3k 2% B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the inferest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments [including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable; and

®  paymenfs of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an opfion fo
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved

Taxation
Income fax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from "loss before tax" because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assefs arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
exfent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporfing period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contued) 4. B REFFEIE o

Taxation (Continued) ﬁlﬁ (&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates BEEBIBEEERBEDURSHRE S
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability HAEL LERMORER (RBE) BE
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax EIRBHREBEBEEXRNEEZ IR BHE
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the ZBABERH-

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects BRERBEABREEZFERRAEE
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in HHRmERRKOKEEEEERE
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, BZHREAEBMERHBER-

fo recover or sefile the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a EREEANTENBNBAHEEE S
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against MR EABEEREE BREERER
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes ENBERER -RBHKEALR —BRK
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation ERRBWHEN B BE R A KR T
authority. MEEENABETHEEHE-

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. BB R R RE B TR 0 15 5 FE AR o fin BN B R
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial BRRERBARXRBEAHOTIE SR
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is EMEA BB ERTAEBLEHD
included in the accounting for the business combination. EETEIE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved

Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are defermined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party fo the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assefs are recognised and derecognised on a frade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assefs that require delivery of assets within the fime
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with custfomers which are initially measured in accordance
with [FRS 15. Transaction cosfs that are directly attributable
fo the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on inifial
recognition.

The effective inferest method is a method of calculating the
amortfised cost of a financial assef or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
lincluding all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial |iobi|if\/, or where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the confractual terms give rise on specified dates fo cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and inferest income

Inferest income is recognised using the effective inferest method
for financial assets measured subsequently aft amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
creditimpaired, inferest income is recognised by applying
the effective inferest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the creditimpaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer creditimpaired, inferest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the defermination that the asset
is no longer creditimpaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued HREFBUR ()
Financial instruments (Confinved) R IT R &)
Financial assets (Continued) SREE (5)
Impairment of financial assets & FEE R E

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit losses ("ECL") model on financial assefs (including trade
receivables, deposits, loan receivables, other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at
the end of each reporting period to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that

In confrast,

are possible within 12 months after the end of each reporting
period. Assessment are done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the end of reporting period as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing components.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12 months ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &=

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4,

Financial instruments (Continved)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

[i}  Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of each reporting period with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument's external [if available) or
internal credit rafing;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

®  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
fo cause a significant decrease in the debfor's
ability to meet its debt obligations;

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81l #% ¥k 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved) 4. B REFHBUER (&)

Financial instruments (Continued) ERMIA @

Financial assets (Continued) SREE (8

Impairment of financial assets (Continved) R EERE (%)

(i} Significant increase in credit risk (Continved) ) EERBREZEEME

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, T b P EEROM AEEH
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased BERE LN FE P HBBIOKE -
EERBRBVIPHERUKRE EEIE
m BRIAEEEEEEREGEE
RERFERY TWERE R -

significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

AEBEEREZEAABRNEERR

38

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the

criteria used to identify whether there has been a EEBREENNBEZ N BE
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as RIRE(EE) K ﬁﬁﬁ RERE
appropriate fo ensure that the criteria are capable of THEB A ENGEERRRZEE

identifying significant increase in credit risk before the e
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default i) BHTEE

?ﬁlﬂqﬁﬁ{*%ﬁﬂ’;mfiﬁﬁi 7 £ [E
RE EBEHNSEHERNITHTXEAR
9|\§?X/ﬁﬁﬁﬁf4%@mﬁﬂ‘%/\fﬁ—f

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that

the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full {without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
720 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

4.

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more
events that have a defrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is creditimpaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) @ breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking info account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Confinved)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

(v  Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
defermined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on frade receivables using a provision
matrix taking info consideration historical credit loss
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects fo receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate defermined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past
due information and relevant credit information such as
forward-looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes info
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status:

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the consfituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is creditimpaired, in which case inferest income is

calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Coniinved)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

[v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognised a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flow from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assef to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including frade payables, other payables
and accruals, amount due to a director and other loans are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derecognition and modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, is recognised in profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms result
in a substantial modification from original terms taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially different
it the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new ferms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange
or modification is considered as non-substantial modification
when such difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial liabilities” original effective interest rafe. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of
the modified financial liabilities and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued]

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

[a)  cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

[b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents
are held for the purpose of meeting shortterm cash
commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash

flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
fransferred fo the customer.

A performance obligafion represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is fransferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete safisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an assef
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
fo date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A confract liability represents the Group's obligation to fransfer
goods or services to a cusfomer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continved)

Revenue from sale of marble and marble related products
are recognised at a point in time. This is the time when
legal assignment is completed which is the fime when the
control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods
have been delivered to the customer's specific location.
Transportation and handling activities that occur before
customers obtain confrol are considered as fulfilment activities.
Certain percentage of advance payments received from
customers pursuant to the respective sales confracts before
the control of goods are passed to the customers. A confract
liability is recognised for sales in which revenue has yet been
recognised. The normal credit term is up to 90 days from the
date of billing.

Revenue from sales of food is recognised at a point in time
when control of the goods has been transferred, being when
the food have been delivered to the cusfomers. The normal
credit term is up to 30 days upon delivery.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group confributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
for all employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed in

the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company's subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required fo participate in a cenfral pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required fo confribute a certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

In addition to participating in national insurance contribution
for employees in the UK, the Group also participates in a
defined contribution scheme for the benefits of its employees.
All the contributions are based on a cerfain percentage of
the employee’s salary and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as incurred and have no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81l #% ¥k 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conined) 4. B REFFBOR ()
Employee benefits (Continved) EBE®F
Shortterm and other long-term employee benefits EHRHMRPESER
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the %2 HAE B 12 A LA TR B X 1 B9 8 A R BE IR
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid CHENESRMHBRESER AR H
as and when employees rendered the services. All short BERABRAR M5 —HEKHY
ferm employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless BHRELRERSAETHBEMNGFAEE
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in B AN B B 9 o
the cost of an asset.
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees HTEENRBN(WIERFE FRA
[such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) ERB)MNBEIMESNEBEEERA
after deducting any amount already paid. BE-
Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee REMEHEEBMNERANEE JHiE
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated AEBEEHREEEZREAHRERD
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in RGPAIEHMEFARREREZRE
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting AE-EARBRA MEREFAEEHK
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting WEBEREMECEMNES HDREES
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised MR DS —HBEBYEREENEK
in profit or loss except fo the extent that another IFRS requires SEFKEBEDHAAEEKARBBRIN
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
Equity-settled share-based payments transactions ERGEUARD/ER ZNARX
2
Share options granted to employees BRTREEZBRE
Equity-seftled share-based payments to employees and others MiEE RIBHEURBS N EMA L HED
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the AR EE AR RER 2 MHRIIIR
equity instrumenfs at the grant date. B TARKEBHNARENE-
The fair value of the equity-sefiled share-based payments RELBHEE s UAEZEZEURG A
defermined at the grant date without taking into consideration ERz2NTORRE (T EMAED
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight- SEBKRME)DERATAEEHZKREER
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's B TAKENMGA REBHA
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a BEGEH MED (BREZE) A
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve]. At the HEZM RERSHAR XEEREY
end of each reporting period, the Group revises ifs estimate FEHRBIETSRBGRENFEETA
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based HrEEENRER TABA MM &
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. ARAERANFE(MBE)RNEBEE®ER
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is AR REHH X RERASE FT (5t 0 40 B8
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense R EERRRAE - AR EH A
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment RSB A 5 @ AT L BB A
to the share option reserve. For share options that vest ZRARERRREBERXHE-
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions (Continved)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
fransferred to accumulated losses.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group's most senior executive management for the purpose
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of
the Group's various lines of business in different geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of productions
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
maijority of these criteria.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised untfil there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

HE S AREERARA T

fn S Al 75 ¥R 2= Pl 53

4.

HREEBUR (o)
REZEUROGCAEBRZARK
= ()

RIEEZERE (&)
REREETFER TR BERERE
WRZcHEBERER D EE WHEK
EREB B B WA E R B B
AETE AEIRERERERER
SR BERERGEE-

EERAE
P B B AR R A B R A R 25 R BERR o

DR E
REDBREEVBHREMERZED
HeFEAEHRRBETAEEZTSTHE
BAERERODELFHEAEEN SR
XA R [ #) RR &R B R
Bl H R o

R BE2mME RIEDMABHELUN
RERBLREERMRBEUEE £ET
FHE FEPRLKER BIEDEER
FRERBEOTEREERROMEE S
AL BAISEEALE LTSS
FerE - ERIFEANEE D MR
BLARMOZE QIAI A HFTE -

BT # Bh
AT ANSE BRI A BT R A M
R 1R DA Je 5 & UK B /8 BE 1R - BRI B BE 5
T IARER -

2022 R 121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Government grants (Continved)

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “Other income and gains, net”.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assefs and intangible assets, to defermine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to defermine the exfent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible fo estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(the "CGU") to which the asset belongs. In testing o CGU
for impairment, corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted fo their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
fo the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (Confinved)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
fo be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assefs or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount the assets on a prorata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an assef is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rafa to the
other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset [or CGU or a group of CGUs) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset [or CGU or
a group of CGUs| in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to sefle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligafion.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to setfle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risk and uncerfainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to setile
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows.

Provision for rehabilitation

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their original
condition, as required by the ferms and conditions of the
lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease at
the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would be
required fo restore the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed
and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if #% 3k 2% B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contnved) 4. B REFTEEK (2
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets FREERAREE

Contingent assets XREE

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected FREERFEI I EMBINEGESE
events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic ZEEHARRARNEETREBENER
benefits to the Group and they are nof recognised in the AN BETERGEMBRENER XK
consolidated financial statements. The Group assesses FEFEIABENBERER ~WME
continuo”y the deve|opmenf of contingent assets. If it has AEAETEELERENZRARK A
become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits AEEREHREYNREDHRNES B
will arise, the Group recognises the assef and the relafed BHREBBREERMEBAKA -

income in the consolidated financial statements in the reporting
period in which the change occurs.

Contingent liabilities RAREE

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past IARBBREABEEMHMMELNRASR
evenfs but is not recognised because it is not probable that T EERTRAEFTERLEAGLE
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be MNEWERMNETEE HEETSHRE
required 1o sefile the obligation or the amount of the obligation EFRDAIEMAGE M TR -

cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an WMAEBEHRERBEEAEXRRERE
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected fo be T REHBEM T ETNEERS S
mef by other parties is freated as a contingent liability and it is WERXARAB MTIERNES KR
not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. e
The Group assesses continually to determine whether an AEEFBETEUNEETROAREAZR
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has HESEENENEIR- MR ERK
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow of RBERENEBERAETERLARK
future economic benefits will be required for an item previously KBNS AREFEAELEEHORE
dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised HEANRGEM B RRBERBE LR
in the consolidated financial statements in the reporting period EVEH AT A EH R FE BB R T AR
in which the change in probability occurs, except in the 4 e
extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can
be made.
Related party B S
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETHNERT BEALTHHEERER
BB
[a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is o) EAATHEEFRUOFAEUTE
related to the Group if that person: o Bl R BR R B A BB
[i)  has control or joint control over the Group; i) HASEEEZEHEXLREZE
i) #
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (i) BAREEEERFEN =X
[iii) is a member of the key management personne| of (i) BAEBSKAE NI N:)
the Group or the Group's parent. TE2ERAR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related party (Continved)

4.

126

(b)

An enfity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is relafed to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity [or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other enfity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entfity.

The entity is a postemployment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly contfrolled by a
person idenfified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services

or obligations between the Group and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members

who may be expected fo influence, or be influenced by, that

person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounfs of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. In defermining whether an asset is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2] whether
the carrying amount of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3] the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-of-
use assefs), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the assefs belongs. Changing the assumptions
and estimates, including the discount rates or the growth rate
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net

present value used in the impairment test.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Mine reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group's mine reserves are
inherently imprecise and represent only approximate amounts
because of the significant judgments involved in developing
such information. There are authoritative guidelines regarding
the engineering criteria that have to be met before estimated
mine reserves can be designated as “proved” and “probable”.
Proved and probable mine reserve estimates are updated at
regular intervals taking into account recent production and
technical information about each mine. In addition, as prices
and cost levels change from year to year, the estimate of
proved and probable mine reserves also changes. This change
is considered a change in estimafe for accounting purposes
and is reflected on a prospective basis in both depreciation
and amortisation rates calculated on a unit of production basis
and the time period for discounting the rehabilitation provision.
Changes in the estimate of mine reserves are also taken into
account in impairment assessments of non financial assets.

Provision of ECL for financial assets measured
at amortised cost

Trade receivables with significant balances or creditimpaired
and all other financial assets measured at amortised cost are
assessed for ECL individually.

In addition, the Group uses practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables which are not assessed individually
using a provision matrix. The provision rates are based on
aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors taking into
consideration the Group's historical default rates and forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At the end of each
reporfing period, the hisforical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL are disclosed in note 7.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. AR B

The Group manages its capital to ensure that enfities in the REFBEBREERN UHRAEECZE
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while BEANAFBEEELSE WHERBEMNME
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation BRERE FE SREHKKAMD
of the debt and equity balance. ¥ o

During the reporting period, the capital structure of the Group REREHRE XEB2ERNEEBEH
consists of debt which includes equity attributable to owners of ARARBEAANEEREZARZEL &
the Company. The directors review the capital structure on a EEHEHEARB -FALENZ —
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the WMo BEEEEEAKARABERRE W
cost of capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate ERDBETHUAHAER 2 E AL
actions to adjust the Group's capital structure. The Group's B-HEBEFEML AEE 2 BEERR
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years. TR MRS D& o

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BA%E\ b5 PE H K w5

AND POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and FEENcRMEETIZRFERE AR
cash equivalents, trade receivables, deposits, loan receivables SEM BESEUZE Lo EBHRER
and other receivables. Financial liabilities of the Group mainly MEMERFE - AEENTREBEE
include trade payables, other payables and accruals, amount EEREFRMNNIE  HMEMNKRER
due to a director and other loans. EFER BNEFFEREMER
Risk management is carried out by the finance department AEBMBHRERNTEETNEG TELT
which is led by the Group's executive direcfors. The Group's RElER AEBEVKEHEREEZE
finance department identifies and evaluates financial risks in BPIEZAE 88 & MY E R
close co-operation with the Group's operating unifs. The main e AEBERMIAMELANTIERER
risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are liquidity BEREBLERR MERAR EERRK
risk, inferest rate risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk. HNEE =L B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

The Group's financial risk management policy seeks fo ensure
that adequate resources are available to manage the above
risks and to create value for its shareholders. The board
regularly reviews these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Ko 75 Rl e 7 P H AR R BOR ()

AEENVHBRAREERRE EERA
RBWEREELARAR X ABRRAE
BE-ZEFeEHEAZFAR (RTX
Bt ) -

() €EMIAEZDE

2022 2021
2022% 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Financial assets: EWMEE:
At amortised cost HREHEN AT E 109,729 81,958
Financial liabilities: SREE:
At amortised cost BN AT = 77,763 40,311

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure fo foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
monitors ifs foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant variable-rate interest
bearing assefs and liabilities. The Group's income,
expenses and operating cash flows were substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
Fluctuation of market rate does not have significant
impact to operating cash flows and no sensitivity
analysis has been presented accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment (d)

Ko 75 R e 4 B H AR R B OR ()

FEERRERRENMG

The Group's bank balances are held in major reputable
financial institutions located in the PRC, Hong Kong and
the UK, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which comprise frade receivables, deposits, loan
receivables and other receivables arises from default of
the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal fo
the carrying amounts of these instruments. The Group has
no other financial assets which carry significant exposure
to credif risk.

The Group sells most of the products to a small number
of customers in the marble distributors. As a result, it
faces a high level of concentration of credit risk. The
Group manages this risk by offering standardised
credit terms fo its customers of marble products for an
approved credit term up fo three months. Some major
customers which have long relationship with the Group
were granted for a longer payment term. The Group
maintains sfrict confrol over its outstanding receivables
and senior management regularly reviews the overdue
balances. In addition, the Group's exposure to credit
risk is also influenced by the individual characteristics of
each customer and default risk of the industry in which
customers operate.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 75%
(2021: 76%) and 100% [2021: 100%) of the tofal
trade receivables was due from the largest customer and
top five largest customers within the sales of marble and
marble related product segment.

HEESAREZERERAF

AEBNRTESRERRGTE &
BAREBENIENLZSBHEBE M
EEEHERSERBAARTEE
BEX-AKEEMeREE (B
B5RWFE B BRERK
HEWHREAE)NESERRHENR
SEFITELMES - A E R
EeEARBEERZETANER
BE-ASBEYEEMEEEREES
[\ B O & BB E o

AEEHEABIERTREAD
HEPHNIHEEP -Hitt HER
BESETEERBR -AKRERBAN
EHABAEMNEFPREHETEEREE
H(KBEEERRSH=MEA)
EEZERR -EAKEERRY
ARCETIZERFERERNN
FHIRR - AN 5= [ 8 A K e [ R R
RERRFERRES BSREEE
SEHENBBE R U KK
ErEENEERRIZIEAE
FOENFEREFEEXBGHME
TENEORRMATZE-

AEBEEEETRR RESE
SR HIARTE 275% (20214 :
76%) K%100% (20214 : 100%)
REREARKELABBERD
MZEREPRAKREP -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

Ko 75 Rl e 7 P H AR R BOR ()

d) BERBRRETE

(Continued)

Trade receivables are assessed based on provision
matrix, except for trade receivables with gross carrying
amounts of approximately RMB1,312,000 and
RMB151,388,000 (2021: RMB1,462,000 and nill,
which are creditimpaired or trade receivables with
significant balances, that are assessed individually. The
Group performed impairment assessment for the trade
receivables equal fo lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group's different customer
bases. The Group recognised impairment losses with
the amounts of approximately RMB1,312,000 and
RMB87,083,000 (2021: RMB1,462,000 and nil)
in respect of trade receivables which were credit-
impaired or with significant balances for ECL assessment
individually.

The Group applied the IFRS @ simplified approach to
measuring ECL which uses a lifetime ECL allowance for
all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The following fable provides information about
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECls for trade
receivables:

As at 31 December 2022

EomEWFBBDDRERGEE
ETHE EEAAEHNARE
1,312,000t B £ ZERENE
SEBZRBENEDRAENHDARE
151,388,000t EHELEEE A
BO5RBABE(ZEZ—F: AR
#1,462,000 R F) B & #E 1T
M- AEEHZESHEWRFKBEEITE
ERN2HEHEEBBENRERT
B FRABEBEEEFE - BRASE
EMFELEEEBEBLRIT RKKBT
RAEFOHNEBEEEANGTEREZE
B oANpERBHRENEIBRE
FrEEASETREFPRHZHEE—
TRy HREBHETHEHEEES
BB RLEEERELREESH
EANEZERFE AEE SR
ERREEEHARE] 312,000
TR ARBS7, 083,000t (2021
F: AR 462,000 RE) -

A 9 B R P I B 5 7R 45 R B0
AL RE BB W AR &
5% kB B 55 MR HOB 68 F 2
BMEEFBEE R ERBE
BEE BB EERECREAR
MEERREURDBRESMA-
TREUABAREFAENEE
AR R 5 W3R B T B 15 B
B0 E R

M2022%12A31H

Expected credit

loss rate  Gross carrying Loss
(Note 1) amounts allowance
RMB’000 RMB’000
BHEEEEX
(Biat1) EEeE BIERE
AREFT ARETTT
Provision on individual basis R AR EET IR B R 58% 152,700 88,395
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
As at 31 December 2021

fm S Bl 35 ¥R B 53

7. BAME R FE A B H O A BUR ()

(d) E& =R REEFE @

2021 12H31H

Expected credit

loss rafe Gross carrying Loss
(Note 1) amounts allowance
RMB'000 RMB'000
BHEEREX
(W) FEEemE BIERE
AREFTT ARETT
Provision on individual basis RERIEETIREE 100% 1,462 1,462
Provision on collective basis AR B ERTIREA

0 to 90 days 0£90H 2.7% 17,990 485
91 to 180 days Q1&2180H 2.8% 5,657 158
181 to 360 days 1812360H 4.2% 6,999 297
361 to 720 days 3612720H 26.9% 56,844 15,283
Over 720 days 7208 M F 100% 27,529 27,529
Total FoRY 116,481 45214

Note: Biat -

1) Expected credit loss rates are based on actual loss experience
and adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking  information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to
sefile the receivables. The Group has identified factors to be the
most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss

rates based on expected changes in these factors.

HEESAREZERERAF

BHEREDEARERBERER WIE
HBEURREERP &N ERFIED
RN RBABERZORE RATEEER
BeAKBERMSMENER TER
RERZNEDNLYHEEFARBEBR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

Ko 75 Rl e 7 P H AR R BOR ()

d) BERBRRETE

(Continued)
Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
creditimpaired)  (creditimpaired) Total
2HEH 2HES
EEEE EEFE
(YJ|EERE) (FEFERHE) #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARETR ARET R
As at 1 January 2021 MW2021F181H 13,525 138,183 151,708
Impairment losses recognised EHRREER - 10,483 10,483
Impairment losses reversed BEREREEE (982) (2,001) (2,983)
Transfer to lifetime ECL ERE=>HRHEERE
[creditimpaired) (FEEERE) [10,652) 10,652 -
Written off g8 - (114,8706) (114,8706)
Exchange differences EHES - 882 882
As at 31 December 2021 and  H2021F12A31H K
as at 1 January 2022 R2022% 1818 1,891 43,323 45,214
Impairment losses recognised BERREERE 2,221 36,249 38,470
Impairment losses reversed EEERERE (579) - (579)
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRE>HEAEEEBE
[creditimpaired) (GFEEERE) (1,312) 1,312 =
Exchange differences &R ER - 5,290 5,290
As at 31 December 2022 #2022%12H31H 2,221 86,174 88,395

An impairment assessment on the Group's frade

receivables was prepared by an independent

valver. The ECL for trade receivables was measured

at approximately RMB88,395,000 (2021:

RMB45,214,000) as at 31

December 2022 and

was measured in accordance with the IFRS @ and the

following formula:

Exposure at Default (EAD)* Probability of Default (PD)*
Loss Given Default (LGD)* Discount Factor (DF).

134 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

A& B E S WK IA &R E -
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EEBERHARARYESS,395000
7T (20216 AR¥A45,214,000
TT) NIRBERMEREERFEO

HELATARE:
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

Ko 75 R e 4 B H AR R B OR ()
d) BEEBRHETE

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables would be the
EAD. Depending on the nature of receivables, the PD
is derived from various parameters, such as corporate
default rate forecasts by industry, emerging market
credit indices by industry and rating, aging record and
historical payment or default records from the company
are considered.

The credit quality of deposits, loan receivables and
other receivables has been assessed with reference fo
historical information about the counterparties default
rates. The directors are of the opinion that, except for
other receivables with the amounts of approximately
RMB78,211,000 (2021: RMB78,311,000) classified
as creditimpaired, the credit risk of deposits, loan
receivables and other receivables is limited due fo no
significant change in credit quality of the counterparty
of these financial assefs and concluded that impairment
loss in respect of other receivables with amounts of
approximately RMB3,218,000 (2021: nil) in relation to
lifetime ECL [not creditimpaired). Therefore, impairment
loss of approximately RMB100,000 in respect of lifetime
ECL (creditimpaired) for other receivables was reversed
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB100,000).

The following table show reconciliation on loss
allowance of other receivables under general approach:

EBHRRBOKRAE S EKRKIED
REE RFEEFENEEL  EQ
BMEREZHESE WRITEE DN
EEEHRIER - RITES DA
MHEEREHELFR RELHEER
A 38 A RSB KO RC 8%

B BUE R E Al R KR B
fﬁgiﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂiﬁLﬁ
FHNELERFB -EFRE
HIBEERENE MRS E%A
ER¥78,211,0007T (20214 - A
R#78,311,0007T) 40 & &
B TR K T 0 12 L
ER RARZEFEMEEH T
MEEERYBEERNEE B R/HE
2HEHEERR (LEEERE)
ERMEMEWRREAEZBEER
HANRES3,218,0007T (20214 :
/) A REE2022F 12431
BLtFE BORE2HBHEED
B(FEEERNE) AROEME
Wk B R BB R X AR 100,000
7T (2021 : AR¥100,000
JT) e
TRINTIE BRI EHERNE &
U R TR S 1R A 0 B B

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
[nof creditimpaired| [creditimpaired) Total
2 HEH 2 HITEH
=EFE -1
(TEEERE) (GFEEEREA) BET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT ARETRT
As at 1 January 2021 20211 A1H - 78,411 78,411
Impairment losses reversed BRI ERE - (100) (100]
As at 31 December 2021 and as at M2021F12A318 &

1 January 2022 R2022%F1A1H - 78,311 78,311
Impairment losses recognised EHERREERE 3,218 - 3,218
Impairment losses reversed BEDRERE - (100) (100]
As at 31 December 2022 W2022%12H31H 3,218 78,211 81,429
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&
7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Liquidity risk

fn S Al 5 ¥R 2= Pl 53

7. BARRE B P H R R BUR (8

(e) RBEZRAMR

The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of
funds by considering the maturity of both its financial
liabilities and financial assets and projected cash flows
from operations. The Group's objective is to mainfain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of interestbearing loans and its own
funding sources.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. When the creditor has a choice
of when the liability is setiled, the liability is included on
the basis of the earliest date on when the Group can be
required fo pay. The maturity dates for financial liabilities
are based on agreed repayment dates.

AREEEEEASBABRSBE
ENMRABSLEERERERE
EREASERER  AEENE B
BEREMAHERAREASNE
© R A S R BT
048 <

TRAINBERRAEE SR E
BB T A MBBBI AR IIRE
AEEARERERNKKEEEH
ReMBENAMBERSRERR
EERATEEAREENFHEE
BERAKEEAREREREENR
FEEHAR-2RABNIHAER
WEZERBH -

As at 31 December 2022

2022124318
More than
2 years
Less than but not Tofal
1 year Between more than  undiscounted Carrying
orondemand 1 and 2 years five years cash flows amounts
1R 28Nk 3
FRER 1226  BTHEBSE REREALE RAEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
Trade payables EHEME 37,249 - - 37,249 37,249
Other payables and accruals B EERTFIR R EST B R 21,332 - - 21,332 21,332
Amount due to a director EREZHE 1,237 = = 1,237 1,138
Other loans EthER 17,233 1,434 = 18,667 18,044
lease liabilities HERE 93 - - 93 91
77,144 1,434 - 78,578 77,854

136 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BA%E BG4S P H B R B (o)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (Continved e) RBEEZRAMR 2
As at 31 December 2021
m2021%12A318

More than
2 years
Less than but ot Tofal
1 year Between more than undiscounted Carrying
orondemond 1 and 2 years five years cash flows amounts
16/ 2EN L AEH
FREX 1826 [BETBEE RERELE BHE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Trade payables EHRMFE 15,942 - - 15,942 15,942
Other payables and accruals HENTRER
et B 11,131 - - 11,131 17131
Amount due to a director ERNEZHE 6,505 - - 6,505 6,105
Other loans HihEH 7,492 - - 7,492 7,133
lease liabilities HEERE 93 86 - 179 170
41,163 86 - 41,249 40,481
(f) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets l AYFERKEMLEEUNQIAE
and financial liabilities that are not FENAEEEREERSE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis mEEZARE
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of EERAMEFEAEECREE
financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to kemaBcRREERSEEBELZ
their fair values for both years. NAEEE -
8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8. WA Lo 28  gy l ER
INFORMATION
Revenue represents the consideration for goods sold, net of WAEBEEERMRE IKRE S
trade discounts and returns and various types of government MEREARERBUFHMME (H@/R) -

surcharges, where applicable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 2022412431 [EFE
8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit were mainly

derived from its sale of marble and marble related products,

which is regarded as a single operating segment in o manner

consistent with the way in which information is regularly reviewed

and evaluated by the Group's executive directors, who is

identified as chief operating decision maker, for purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly,

no segment information is presented. In addition, over 0% of

the Group's total revenue were derived in the PRC and over 90%

of the Group's non-current assets were located in the PRC, no

geographical segment information in accordance with IFRS 8 is

presented.

Information about products

The following table sets forth the revenue from external

customers during the year:

e Bl 35 ¥R P 5F

WO\ B 585 4 BB R ()

AEBOBRARSENOEBREZIRA
REARKREOHEBEROHEE  HK
BIEE-—RENH BAKEHNTES
(RERTEBRERRE)EHEHR
AEEMEEROERKRBFTBREN
AR —F-EHut BHEZ25) 5 BBE R - Ut
O REE BB ABOO%TKEFEE
HBOOWFRBEEAMNFTE B
HHERBEEEV B REEINFESHR 2
53 2 &R E H o

FHRERNES
TREINFARBIBELOUWLA

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'0O00
AREFT AREFT T
Revenue from contracts with customers KERFEHZWA
recognised af a point in time: (RE—REER
Marble slabs KIEARM = 15,491
Marble slags REBAES 71,557 58,647
Sales of food HERM 732 109
72,289 74,247
Information about major customers ERETEEFNESR

Revenue from major cusfomers, each of whom accounted for

10% or more of the total revenue is set out below:

KEXTEEP (BEZHERBANION
A E) B IR AE ST

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR AREFT

Customer A =2EA = 11,956
Customer B =FB 71,557 58,647
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8. WAL R o B E R )

INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers (Contined) FRXERFNER W
Except for disclosed above, no other customers contributed B EXPTHEEEIN MEEME R E
10% or more to the Group for both years. FEHAEEBRATRI0%HIA L
Transaction allocated to the remaining PHREEFAENBRTENEEN
performance obligation for contracts with 5
customers
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph AEBEKBERMBEREEINEISRSE
121 of IFRS 15 to its sales contract for marble and related 1I21BWAIITREAEZEARAERER
products and sales of food such that the Group does not LHBEMAREMOBEEESN AL
disclose information about revenue that the Group will AEBEVEFREABAEENETRE
be entitled to when it safisfies the remaining performance ARMHEEERARRMEEEH (RE
obligations under the contract for sales of marble and related HERAR-—FHAT)IETHRTELE
products and sales of food that had an original expected EREEESHRANELR -

duration of one year or less.

9. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 9. FAb WA B Mtk A

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T R AREETT

Interest income FEWA 3 2
Imputed inferest income on H W IE 2 B A B A

other receivables 868 -

Recovery of trade receivables W el & 5 e U 38 1,000 -

Exchange gain BE 3 M 49 2

Reversal of provision of H At RS FRIR R B B (et )

other payables (Note i) = 996
Government grants (Note Ji) B ek (B atii) 83 -
Others HAh 37 92

2,040 1,092

Notes: it :

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group ferminated a (i) HE2021F12A318 L FE AEBEKR | FEY
consultancy services with a counterparty, no additional cost was required FHNGBARSE EBAREITEIINER-
for such cancellation. Thus, reversal of provision was recognised during Ht - BZE2021F12A831 8 IEFE R ER
the year ended 31 December 2021. [g]

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amount represents i)  EZE2022F12A31BIEFE  Z&BEBRBHR
government subsidies granted due to the COVID-19 pandemic under the TR (R % 5T 81 A B R B AR S Z B
Employment Support Scheme of the Hong Kong Government. There were ETHRAME - BELZERFHMERN
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these government RERGHHRAEE-
granfs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED

10. TS S0 IRBLNT Z I fE s

CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL (B4 el )
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AREF T
Impairment losses recognised/ ST FE R (BE) 2
[reversed), net on: BEEIEFE:
— frade receivables — & 5l FIE 37,891 7,500
— other receivables —H fib B W B 3,118 (100)
41,009 7,400
11. FINANCE COSTS 11, BAES AR
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 6 17
Interest on loan from a director BEERFE 349 4472
Interest on other loans HEME R E 1,531 339
1,886 798
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

12. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging:

12. BBl wi i

AEBENBHRATBBREMBRAT SRR

R
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKA 797 14,614
Production stripping cosfs HE R (R AHERA)
(included in cost of sales) 41,404 38,759
Staff costs (including directors’ BETRA(BREEMNE) :
remuneration):
— Salaries and directors’ fee —HehESHEE 5,846 5,474
— Retirement benefits scheme —RRAE A B X
contributions 218 173
- Allowance and benefits in kind —EEREDH & 36 30
6,100 5,677
Auditor’s remuneration: BRI EN S -
- Audit services — BRI 560 458
- Non-audit services — BT R 139 134
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BB LRETE
equipment 2,358 7,396
Depreciation of rightof-use assefs EHAREENE 173 696
Expenses related to shorterm lease MEAEEER Y 1,545 2,720
Impairment losses recognised AT IBMRAREEE
in respect of:
— property, plant and equipment - BERZRE - 27,005
— intangible assets —EmEE - 6,342
— right-of-use assets —EREEE = 194
loss on disposal of property, HEME BEREEHER
plant and equipment 3,247 -
loss on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFRAREE 2 BR 37 -
loss on unwinding of discount on Hit e W IR RRER BEIR 2 518
other receivables 9,112 -
Write-down of inventories TFEMOR (Gt ASHEKA)
(included in cost of sales) = 363

HEESAREZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

Emoluments

13. EH-THBARA AR FBHAN
+: 1 4

() EERTHRAZME

Fees

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A31BLEE

Salaries,
allowances and
benefits in kind

Retirement

benefits
scheme Total
contributions  emoluments

F& 28R BAEAHE
e YR % MemaE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
KE AR%®Tn ARBTR ARBTR AR%Tn
Executive directors: HIES:
Mr. Zheng Yonghui KB R E - 311 - 311
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei RERLL - 207 - 207
Mr. Zhang Weijun REERE - 155 - 155
Mr. Zhang Mian RBEE - 207 - 207
Chief executive officer: TREH
Mr. Li Yun Fei FEREAE (i) - 345 - 345
Independent non-execufive directors: BUFRTES:
Mr. Yang Ruimin BHEEE 83 - - 83
Mr. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos 7t 4 207 - - 207
Ms. Pei Bing ®ELL (ii) 41 - - 41
Ms. Zu Rui Bzt (iv) 21 - = 21
352 1,225 - 1,577
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

Emoluments (Continued)

13. EF - fTHABR LI AR E TN
+ W4

(o) EERITHAZME =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A318IEFE

Refirement
Salaries, benefits
allowances and scheme Total
Fees  benefits in kind confributions  emoluments
e 2R RIKERNEHE
ne EMFa i3 e s
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ME  ARETE ARETT ARETE ARETT

Executive directors: BaEE:
Mr. Zheng Yonghui BoKE 5 & - 299 - 299
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei RERLL - 199 - 199
Mr. Zhang Weijun REERE - 149 - 149
Mr. Zhang Mian RHBEE - 199 - 199
Independent non-execufive directors: BUERTES:
Mr. Yang Ruimin BHETE 80 - - 80
Mr. Mehmet Ertan Ahmed Mehmet Ertan Ahmed &4 i) 72 - - 72
Mr. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos 5 4 199 - - 199
Ms. Pei Bing kaxt (i) 7 - - 7
358 846 - 1,204

HEESAREZERERAF

2022 F¥R 143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %&x& Bl 55 ¥R 2% Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S

13, EHF - TBARKELA BRI

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

(b)

Emoluments (Continved)
Notes:

(i) Resigned on 2 September 2021

(ii) Appointed on 1 December 2021 and resigned on 30 June 2022

liii)  Appointed on 1 September 2022

liv)  Appointed on 29 September 2022

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind paid to or
for the executive directors are generally emoluments
paid or payable in respect of those persons’ services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and ifs subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for the services as the directors.

Five Highest Paid Individuals

One (2021: two) of the five highest paid individuals of
the Group were directors whose emolument is sef out in
the above. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
remaining four (2021: three] highest paid individuals of
the Group were as follows:

+ W4 e

(o) EERTHRARME »)
(i) R2021F9A2H BT

(i) M2021F 1281 B EZE RKR202246
A30H B E

liii)  F202280R1HELZF

liv)  HR2022F9H29REZRE

AR ATEE N 2H S ER
REWNMERIZFEALTEEALAR
AREMBABRZEHMEMRZR
B BNz — R -

EXRRBIUFRATESENOME )Y
MEEEERHEORBM -

(b) EBBEHFAL
AEBLIEERHFALERE %
(2021 MB)EF - EMECH
M EX-BZE20224128318 1k
FECAREHEBOA(2021F: =
R)EBFALHOMESOT

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBEFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e RBEREMEY
in kind E 1,770 1,392
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR AR4E Fll 51 21 1 & 44 41
1,814 1,433
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 13. BHF - TBAR LA ETA
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL + 4> ()
EMOLUMENTS (Confinved)
(b) Five Highest Paid Individual (Coninved)

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

b) AEEEHF AL
WEZHMWNSBE QT :

Number of individuals

N
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Emolument band: = -
Nil = HK$ 1,000,000 0% 1,000,000 7T 3 2
HK$ 1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 T2
1,500,000/ 7t 1 1
4 3

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors,
chief executive officer or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021. None of the directors, chief
executive officer or five highest paid individuals waived or
agreed fo waive any emoluments during the years ended 31

December 2022 and 2021.

Except disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or
any subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in which a
director had a material interest, whether direcily or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

HEESAREZERERAF

REZE2022% K2021F12A318 14
B AEBYERES TREAHKIAESR
EmHALTXNME FRHRSIBEMN
ARG B 3R 0 AR 5 BB A 22 R - =X
ERABMENEE -BE20229F &2021
FI2ANALFE HMEEF THA
BRAERSHFALIREXRAENES
o] 55 A -

B aMBHRAMEI/MBEEIN R
FRIFAEAMER KRB HLARQA
TAMBARMESET T BAREEE
BEBEEERNHETERAMERESE
REZNEMR S LHREH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 14. iR £

146

2022 2021
2022% 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T X ARBEFIT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax RS
— Current tax —BNEfRE 1E 1,126 1,218
Deferred tax credit fnote 21) EER B R (H7E21) - [608)
Total income tax expenses FriSFif X 4258 1,126 610

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax
rate of subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC is 25% for
both years.

The tax rafe of subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject fo Hong
Kong Profit Tax at 16.5% for both years.

The tax rate of subsidiary in the UK is subject to Corporation
9% for both

Tax ("UK Corporation Tax") and is calculated at 1
years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and UK Corporation

Tax has been made for both years as the Group has no
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong or in the UK.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

REFBECEMEHRE ([REMEHR
AN REERMEVAERED - AR A
A E 2 BB R R M 2 TR
#B25% o

EEZHBRARANMEFEERIO.5%
MREBRBENEH -
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%Wﬂif REEZWHE QT
O MIF R R A B ([ % EH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Confinved)

The reconciliation between the income tax expenses for the

14. FrfsBiBd % o)

FAMGHAXERBEABERENAER

year and the loss before tax multiplied by domestic income tax FeBmERzERMT
rate is as follows:
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBETT
Loss before tax B T A B 18 (60,758 49,732)
Tax af domestic income tax rate REAMRBHHEERAENHRIA (11,042) (11,044)
Tax effect of income not taxable M B BB ERTAR
for tax purpose M E (505) (785)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FAAE T B 60 AT 4R A S Y
for tax purpose MR & 10,345 10,624
Estimated tax loss not recognised REERGFTHIERSE 2,328 1,975
Utilisation of tax losses previously B A R R Y T IR B 18
not recognised = (160)
Income tax expenses PR B X 1,126 610

HEESAREZERERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81l #% ¥k 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BB 1H
(a) Loss per share—Basic () BREBE-EX
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on BREXEBEDIREARRAHE
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the ﬁ ANEEFEBEHODARE
Company of approximately RMB61,884,000 (2021: ,884,0007L (20215F : AR
RMB50,342,000) and the weighted average number 50 342,000 ) R FRNB BITE
of 141,604,138 (2021: 141,604,138 (restated)) BRENEFHIHI41,604,1380%
ordinary shares in issue during the year. (20214 : 141,604,138 (& &

1) )EHESH-

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for RAEBRELAEEMS BE
the year ended 31 December 2021 for the purposes 2021 12R31HIEFERN T BK
of calculating basic loss per share have been adjusted miEFHHEB RN 2022812A21
for the share consolidation which took place on 21 HETHROAHELFHE-

December 2022.

(b) Loss per share—Diluted b) BREE-#F
The effects of all potential ordinary shares are anti- RRMEFE FREEEETRRKRHA
dilutive since their assumed exercise would result in o ExR#ERLE JH:EEEI?JLAij RATIE
decrease in loss per share for both years. ZEBEEBRAISHERERR
Ao
The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for WEFE 2 & RERREEEIEE
both vears. ] °
16. DIVIDEND 16. B &
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders B E2022F 124318 1L F I & [ R
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022, N A E R IR R R K Y 3k 22 & R N ] AR
nor has any dividend been proposed subsequent fo the end of B BREHEREITTERZRIRMNEM
the reporting period (2021: Nil). BB (20214 - 4) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W38 ~ Wi B it
Leasehold
improvement
Plant and and office Motor Mining  Construction

Buildings ~ machinery ~ equipment vehicles infrastructure in progress Total
BENE
%ER

BF® HERESE HARE RE  REEE  HBIR &t

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTTE ARBTR ARETR ARBTR AR®TR AR%TR ARETR

COST: A
As at T January 2022 #202261 518 9,232 55714 6,041 12,091 61,183 121,797 266,058
Additions RE - - - - - 1,264 1,264
Disposal /write off HE /M (375) (4,000) (1,500) - (1,336) - (7,211)
As at 31 December 2022 M2022€12A318 8,857 51,714 4,541 12,091 59,847 123,061 260,111
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT: B HEREAE:
At T Jonuary 2022 202261818 6,123 43,991 3,772 11,973 21,484 34,045 121,388
Provided during the year FREE 502 1,319 461 76 - = 2,358
Disposal /write off HE/ M (219) (2,280) (1,425) - (40) - (3,964
As at 31 December 2022 20226128318 6,406 43,030 2,808 12,049 21,444 34,045 119,782
Carrying amounts: REE:
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%12A318 2,451 8,684 1,733 42 38,403 89,016 140,329
COST: A
As at T January 2021 2021617818 9,232 55,714 6,041 12,107 61,183 116,627 260,904
Additions RE - - - - - 5,170 5,170
Exchange realignment ERA% - - - (16) - - (16)
As at 31 December 2021 ®2021€12A318 9,232 55,714 6,041 12,091 61,183 121,797 266,058
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT: R ERHE:
As at T January 2021 202151418 4978 36,022 3,358 11,302 13,950 17,390 87,000
Provided during the yeor FREE 555 5,743 414 684 - - 7,396
Impairment losses recognised BRARESE 590 2,226 - - 7,534 16,655 27,005
Exchange realignment ERAE - - - (13) - - (13)
As at 31 December 2021 M2021612A8318 6,123 43,991 3,772 11,973 21,484 34,045 121,388
Carrying amounts: REE:
As at 31 December 2021 ®2021€12A318 3,109 11,723 2,269 118 39,699 87,752 144,670
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Coninved)  17. P03~ W5 3%t ()

The Group's property, plant and equipment are mainly used
in the Group's sale of marble and marble related products
operation (the “Sichuan Jinshida CGU"). During the vyear
ended 31 December 2022, the directors conducted a review
of the recoverable amount of the Group's property, plant and
equipment, infangible assefs and right-of-use assefs based
on the value in use of Sichuan Jinshida CGU and concluded
that amounts of nil (2021: RMB27,005,000), nil (2021
RMB6,342,000) and nil (2021: RMB194,000) was impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2022 in respect of
the Group's property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and rightofuse assets. The recoverable amount have been
defermined on the basis of the value in use of the Sichuan
Jinshida CGU, the valuation is prepared by an independent
professional valuer. The pre-tax discount rate in measuring the
amounts of value in use were 27% (2021: 29%) in relation
fo Sichuan Jinshida CGU. The growth rate of cash flow in
the long run are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of
3% [2021: 3%). Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations related to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
included budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation is
based on the Sichuan Jinshida CGU's past performance and
management’s expectation for future performance.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amounts of Sichuan Jinshida CGU to exceed the
recoverable amount. If the discount rate was changed to
34% [2021: 35%), while other parameters remain constant,
the recoverable amount of CGU of Sichuan Jinshida CGU
would be reduced to approximately RMB135,000,000
(2021: RMB128,000,000) and impairment of approximately
RMB38,000,000 (2021: further impairment of
RMB48,000,000) would be recognised.

If the budgeted sales covering 5-year period were reduced by
5%, while other parameters remain constant, the recoverable
amount of Sichuan Jinshida CGU would be reduced to
approximately RMB 159,000,000 (2021: RMB158,000,000)
and impairment of approximately RMB13,000,000 (2021:
further impairment of RMB19,000,000) would be recognised.

150  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

AEEZYE BELRBIZARA
SERELARREAHBEMNEESR
BlmlekesReEEEM]) - RE
Z2022F12A3'BLLFE EFEER
mlleResReELEUZEREES
BMAEEzME BELRRE BYEE
UEREREEEZANHNESHE RRE
F2022F12A3BLFEAEEHZY
X BELREB BEEEANERESR
ERETEIHSET (2021F: ARK
27,005,0007) ~ZE (20215 AR
6,342,0007L) K ZE (20215 AR¥
194,0007T) - AT @ £ &R M) & B 2=
ReErBUZERBEET @M
BETRABYEXHEMRE O
RERTELBEUFECREESZEZ
BATBE IR & R27% (20214 : 290%) - 1]
EREBEZRBERRERAI% (20214
SU e REBERXHER -FTHEEREEZ
HbTEBRRSRRASRARHE Z A
AHORREEHERENENEK GG
DREBEOI R ERSELEEL 2BE
RANEEBHARRRRZBBIEL -

EEERR FMNZFRENMEMEE
AR regynm)lewnERe
EXBUNREERZBA KD EE- MK
BRI R E /B34% (20214 :35%) -
MEMS2HEFTE AW SRKER
TELBUNAKDSERRISEOA
K #135,000,0007T (2021 : AR
128,000,0007T) » I 78 #E R B E X A
R #38,000,0007T (20214 : # — ZF
RBEARKE48,000,0007T) °

MBEELFHENREHSERDS5%
2B RN E R &R ER
CTELABUNATKREDSERRISEDA
K #159,000,0007 (20214 : AR
158,000,0007T) * W /AR RELH A
R #13,000,0007T (20214 : i —
RBEAREE19,000,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. L H &
Mining
rights
237 4
RMB'000
AREET T
COST: A
As at 1 January 2021, as at 31 December 2021, R2021F1H1H M2021F12/8318
as at 1 January 2022 and as af 31 December 2022 1202251 A 1H kRH2022412H31H 62,785
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND Rt eE RORE
IMPAIRMENT:
As at 1 January 2021 R2021%F1A1H 23,029
Impairment loss recognised EHRREER 6,342
As at 31 December 2021, R2021%F12A8318 -
as at 1 January 2022 and MR2022F1A1B K&
as at 31 December 2022 R20229F12A831H 29,371
CARRYING AMOUNT: MREE
As at 31 December 2022 M2022F12H31H 33,414
As at 31 December 2021 M2021F12H31H 33,414
The infangible assets represent mining rights of marble reserves BREERARERBERILANKESL
in the Zhangjiaba Mine which is located in Jiangyou County, EEMEN ZBUMCRPEDEIAET
Sichuan Province, the PRC. The Mine is operated by the MG - BAARARREEEZEWNE QAT
Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Sichuan Jiangyou THEREAZARAR (T € E
Jinshida Stone Co., Ud.* ("Sichuan Jinshida"). The local E)IRE-MABRNETFTHINSRES
government granted the mining permits fo Sichuan Jinshida HIOFWEHEBTAI & N20215F 2R 1
with a term of 10 years to 1 February 2021 and further HEIB&E — T EBHSFE20265F2A1
extend 5 years to 1 February 2026. B
The Group conducted a reviews of the recoverable amount NEBMP2022F K202 1 £ HHE BT
of its intangible assefs in 2022 and 2021. The Group's BEZAWEBSE - AEEZETVEE
intangible assets are used in the Group’s Sichuan Jinshida ARAEBZ W)@ ERSEEEN -
CGU. Details please refer to note 17. HIEFE2HME7 -
* English translation for identification only * ESE QT Hill
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. 3 FIREE &
Leasehold Leased
lands property  Motor vehicle Total
HELH HENF AE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Cost: BA:
As at 1 January 2021 R202141 A18 2,457 908 678 4,133
Termination of lease RIERE - (983) - (983)
Exchange alignment fE 5 B E - [15) (20) (35)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021412R31H 2,457 - 658 3,115
Accumulated depreciation: AFHE:
As at 1 January 2021 R2021%1 818 1,272 461 215 1,948
Charge for the year ERXH 34 528 134 696
Impairment loss recognised ERAAESE 194 - - 194
Exchange realignment [E 5 % - (6] (9 (15]
Termination of lease BIEHE - (983) - (983)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021412R31H 1,500 - 340 1,840
Cost: BA:
As at 1 January 2022 R2022%1 818 2,457 - 658 3,115
Disposal HE (1,154) - - [1,154)
Exchange alignment [ X HE - - 61 61
As at 31 December 2022 M2022412R31H 1,303 - 719 2,022
Accumulated depreciation: RiHE:
As at 1 January 2022 R2022%1 A1H 1,500 - 340 1,840
Charge for the year FASH 34 - 139 173
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% - - 36 36
Witten off upon disposal P B A 5 (937) - - (937)
As at 31 December 2022 M2022412R31H 597 - 515 1,112
Carrying amounts: BREME:
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%12R318 706 - 204 910
As at 31 December 2021 M2021412R31H 957 - 318 1,275

Ml eFEReEEFEMARENEFT
N7

Details of impairment assessments of Sichuan Jinshida CGU
are set out in note 1/.

MEZRERHAERHARE 638,000
7T (20214 : AR#3,355,0007T) °

The total cash outflow of leases were approximately
RMBT,638,000 (2021: RMB3,355,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Coninved| 19. 3 FIHEE 7 o)
leasehold lands represents lump sum considerations paid or HETHEASERBEARBEZSE
payable by the Group to acquire leasehold lands located EomsAEBO T HEL LB
in the PRC under the mediumterm lease where its mining RABEMNEE T HE NS ENZ — RN
infrastructure are primarily located. The Group is the registered RE-AEBEARFHEL WO EME
owner of these leasehold land. These leasehold lands are with EA-ZEHETHMBEBHR/IBFEES0
lease periods of 48 to 50 years and there are no ongoing FoRE DA E R BB BB B BRA
payments fo be made under the terms of the land leases other KRR TN EREMBEEDONRI
than payments based on rateable values set by the relevant BRABBXNEMKE - ZEMNRTE
government authorities. These payments vary from time to time 2E WASNTHBEBRTHKE -2~
and are payable fo the relevant government authorities. The REAEIER ZFBEVNENEE
leasehold land components of these owned properties are THEHD T AEBZS -
presented separately only if the payment can be allocated
reliably.
The Group leases motor vehicle in Hong Kong (2021: motor AEERELEERBTBEHERE (2021
vehicle) for its operations. The motor vehicle leases for 4.5 FoRBE) - MNMEFE - REHBY A
years for both years. In determining the lease term and 4. 5% o O /& 7F TH HA K wF A& T AT EH HA
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group WEER AEEREAANNERELE
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period TE B K AT 98 HI Fh 1T EY B R o

for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB9Q1,000 (2021: AN 2022 12A3TH 2B A AR
RMB170,000) are recognised with motor vehicle as at #91,0007T (20214F : AR 170,000
31 December 2022. The lease agreement do not impose any T)MEERGEDRAEER -BREHEA
covenants other than the security inferests in the leased assefs FAMEBEEETHNEREZERN HE
that are held by the lessor. leased assets may not be used as BT EEINENRBE - HEBETE
security for borrowing purposes. A REE A -

In addition to the portfolio of shortterm leases for offices, GAEBTHIIVYHNBEAET BE BE
warehouse, plant and machinery which are regularly entered MEFOEBMESEHAIN NEEREH
info by the Group, the Group entered into several short- Z2022F12A3VHIEFER PR E
term leases for offices and warehouse during the year BEAIVHIARBAMEE - N2022F 124
ended 31 December 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the I HEHHERENFETHEHE X
outstanding lease commitments relating to shortferm leases is ERAR®KA418,000T (20215 AR
RMB418,000 (2021: RMB747,000). ¥747,0007T) °
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20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 20. A2 e A R Z v
COMPANY
The list below gives the particulars of principal subsidiaries of TREINARAETEWNBRRAINFEB B
the Company which, in opinion of the directors, principally ERR ZRERAHAEENKLLEEER
affect the operating results and net assets of the Group. To BEFEBKNEEXE-EFRA
give full details of subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the FEMBARSERRENEBNR TR -
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
Nominal value
Place/country of of issued
incorporation/ and paid-up share/  Percentage of equity
registration registered  interests attributable to
Company name and operation Kind of legal entity paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
TR K BRTRARRS/ ERE
ARER YENY /B  EEBRER AMARREZEE BEESML TEXH
2022: 2021:
2022%:  2021%:
Directly held:
EEFE:
Kingstone Industrial Invesiment Limited The British Virgin Limited liability company  United States Dollar 100% 100%  Investment holding
Islands (the “BVI") ["US$"N
ShEEREBRAT EBRAKS BREMFRA 1% REAZR
Success United Asia Lid. The BVI Limited liability company Us$1 100% 100%  Trading of marble slabs
EBEMNERAR EBRAKES BREMFRA [E BEARBARM
China Kingsmount Industrial Group limited ~ The BVI Limited liability company Us$1 100% 100%  Inactive
FESILEZEEERAA EBRAHES BREFRAA 1% EEex
China Kingsfield Mining Group Limited The BVI Limited liability company Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
TEEAREEEERAA EBRAKES BREMFRAA [ REAZR
China Kingsgold Mining Group Limited ~ The BV Limited liability company Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
THEEBEEEBRAA EBRAKES BREMFAA B REER
Tech Melon Catering Management Limited  Hong Kong Limited liability company Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
HENERERERAF BB BREMFRAR 1% REER
Indirectly held:
MERE:
Baiwei (Shenzhen) Invesiment The PRC Limited liability company RMB500,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Management Co., Lid. *
BE(RINREEEBRAA HE BREMFAR AE#500,0007 EE2X
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20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Nominal value

20. A2 ] B A R Z FEAE o)

Place/country of of issued
incorporation/ and paid-up share/  Percentage of equity
registration registered  interests affributable fo
Company name and operation Kind of legal entity paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
AL/ ZERR BROTRBERB NG
AREHE EENE /B  EEEEERR EMBARREZEE EREOL TEEH
2022: 2021:
2022 20214
Kingstone (HK) Group Limited Hong Kong Limited liability company HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
2R (BB EEERAT BB BREARA 1B REER
Kingstone (Guangzhou) Mable Industry The PRC Limited liability company US$50,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and frading of
Co., lid.* ('Kingstone Guangzhou') construction materials
2R (BEM)REZERRA ([2AEM]) & BREARA 50,000,000% ¢ MIREERENH
Sichuan Jinshida The PRC Limited liability company RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Mining, processing and
frading of construction
materials
m)le&E HE BREMFAT AR#10,000,0007 Rk MIREERE
M#
Tech Melon Limited UK Limited liability company GBP100 100% 100%  Food brand franchise
5E BREMLAR 1005 8 RmmEETEE
Celebrafion Meal Limited UK Limited liability company GBP100 100% - Food brand franchise
®E BREMLAR 1005 8 RmmEETEE
Zhuhai Jinhong Stone Industry Co., lid.*  The PRC Limited liability company RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
KEELAERERAA i BREMLAR AR#10,000,0007 REZR
* English translation for identification only * BRI BRI

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities outstanding af

R E R EFE AR RN B

the end of the reporting period or at any fime during the year NEAIEBRABREZEBLZEF (2021

(2021: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 2022412431 [EFE
21. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

for

e Bl 35 ¥R P 5F

S B AR
BB A ENE BT

21.

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of

a subsidiary
WEEH B 2 F)
FEENDARE
AR

RMB'000
ARBETTT

As at 1 January 2021
Credited to profit or loss (Note 14)

R2021F1A1H
AR (MiE14)

608
(608

As at 31 December 2021, as af 1 January 2022 and
as at 31 December 2022

20214124318 H2022F1 A1 K
20224 12A31H -

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has unused estimated
tax losses of approximately RMB22,394,000 (2021:
RMB12,481,000) available for offsetting against future profits.
No deferred tax asset for both years has been recognised
in respect of such fax losses due to unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in above unused estimated tax losses,
the Group has unused estimated tax losses of approximately
RMB5,104,000 (2021: RMB180,000) available for offsetting
against future profits in UK and the unused estimated tax losses
can be carried forward indefinitely and up to Pound Sterling
("GBP") 5 million. The remaining unused estimated tax losses
will be expired as below:

2022 12A31H - AEEBHE RS ARG
STMIEEEN AR®22,394,0007T (2021
F:AR%12,481,0007T) - a] 3K 85 K
RO A o p 70 R SR A R B DA TEDRD - B
P {18 4F 2 3 8 Bt 3% S5 TR B IR RE R AT Y
BEE LM RBAMAHEBES A
ABAMGEHEBEOARES 104,000
7T (20214F - AR #180,0007T) A AR
HRBAREN B RHAETHEE
BAERPEE &% 55000,0005 8 -
BT ARB A BIRE R B ST

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

2022 2022%F - 574
2023 2023% 3,381 3,381
2024 2024% 1,606 1,606
2025 2025% 3,096 3,096
2026 20265 3,637 3,644
2027 20274 5,570 -
17,290 12,301
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
2022 2021
2022% 20214
RMB'000 RMB'0O00
AR®TF R ARMTF T
Raw material Rk 137 82

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

23. ® 5 BEWGRIH

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBEFIT

Trade receivables from contracts KERFAEHNZE S EWRIE
with customers 152,700 116,481
less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (88,395) (45,214)
64,305 71,267

As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables arising from confracts
with customers (before allowance for credit losses) amounted
fo approximately RMB230,560,000.

The Group's frading ferms with its customers are mainly on
credit. Except for certain customers solicited by the Group
at the beginning of its commercial operation were granted
for a longer credit terms, the credit period is generally up
fo three months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over ifs outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Trade
receivable are non-inferest bearing.

HEESAREZERERAF

R2021F1TATR - REBEPANZES
FEURIE (R EEERBE) R A
R #230,560,0007T °

AEFRREZFNEZRRATIEREER
R -BAKEREREBEZERD
HRENETEFPERTREEEHIN
EEH-—REsR=EA AKER
BRENBRRBEEBEREZEFARE
BEEERR BEHERERARTEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81l #% ¥k 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continved) 23. B G EWGKIE (o)

An aged analysis of trade receivables, as at the end
of the reporting period, based on earlier of the invoice
date or revenue recognition date, and net of allowance
for credit losses, is as follows:

RBERR REZZAPRRAER
RE (ARFERE) BHENFIE (B
HREEEREE) WREONMBT:

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

0 to 90 days 0ZQ0H 31,584 17,505
Q1 to 180 days Q1&£180H 12,739 5,499
181 to 360 days 181E2360H 3,787 6,702
361 to 720 days 3612720H 13,175 41,561
Over 720 days 7208 A £ 3,020 -
64,305 71,267

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group's trade
receivables balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately RMB32,721,000 (2021:
RMB53,762,000) (net of allowance for credit losses) which

are past due at the end of the reporting period.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
directors consider any change in the credit quality of the frade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period.

The balance of approximately RMB16,195,000 (2021:
RMB56,322,000) was denominated in HK$.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statfements.
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M2022%12A31B - AEENE S E
WHRIRGEHEENBREH RS BHOK
EHEEHARES32,721,0007T (2021
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(RHAKREEBEBRRE) -

RETEESRBUWRBAN A RE L &
EEREEVSREEEAHEEERS
HRESRBREFBREEEENERNES-

SEBHARE6,195,0007 (2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 2022412431 H [EFE
24. PREPAYMENT, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if #% 3k 2% B 5%

24. T ARIE ~ 248 M H At B WOk IH

RECEIVABLES

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT

Prepayment for acquisition of property, IEEM % B R 2
plant and equipment FE N RIA - 51,330
Prepayment TR IR 7,700 837
Deposits bieacra 2,771 2,756
loan receivables J& W & 3R - 423

Other receivables for refund from suppliers Eﬁif,\FEFﬁL KB BEREAM
& LR 36,068 -
Other receivables ﬁ{‘@ﬁguﬁlm 3,397 367
49,936 55,713
less: non-current portion W IERBNER (27,640) (51,330)
22,296 4,383

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
entered info refund agreement with suppliers to refund

the Group

the prepaid amounts of acquisition of property, plant
and equipment after deduction of relevant cost with the
amounts of approximately RMB49,570,000 to the Group
by 4 instalments within 2 vyears. The above-mentioned
other receivables were interest-free and no collateral
obtained by the Group. loss on unwinding of discount on
other receivables of approximately RMB9,112,000 was

recognised in profit or loss.

loan receivables with principal amounts of GBP50,000
[approximately RMB423,000] (net of allowance for credit
losses) in 2021 are unsecured, interest-bearing at 10% per
annum and repayable after 90 days from the drawdown
date. There is no collateral obtained from the Group.

Deposits and other receivables with the amounts approximately
RMB229,000 (2021: RMB636,000] and RMB190,754
(2021: RMB65,000) were denominated in HK$ and GBP

respectively.

Details of impairment assessment are sef out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

HEESAREZERERAF

BE2022F12A31HIEFE - AREEEH
FERI AT SRR a8 MR FE AR 2D M E R A
%@uﬂ%%% B B e e TR 3R
(RIMFEBEBAKAR) HARKEL9,570,000
Toe bt E UK IB AT B AR KRE Y
R A o o E R ORIR AR BR RR R A9
EEAOARES 112,000 NI 1R o

R20214  AE 8 50,0008 & (AR
#423,0007T) (W?ﬂfﬁ‘f\ﬁf%ﬁéﬂﬁﬁéﬁ)ﬁ’ﬁ
EWE R AEET HERNEI0%F SR
iEEChHXEIEHi#QOEHéE@ N e i
BERAEAEAR-

SERHAR®K229,0007T (20214 :
AR#636,0007T) M ARH190,7547T
(2021 $ : /\E‘%OS 0007m) 2B & " H
ftb FE WK IE 29 B AE T R R EE R E

BEMGFBEERNEEMBEREMET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %&x& Bl 55 ¥R 2% Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

25.

26.

160

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. Bl kBl EEHY
The Group's cash and cash equivalents are all denominated in AEENReMRSFEMHATIE
the following currencies: WatE:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARETT
RMB AR 790 2,826
HK$ BT 2,210 4,247
us$ Ep 168 71
GBP e 20 ]
3,188 7,145
RMB is not freely convertible info other currencies, however, ARBIAATEREBREMEE  HEIRE
under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations, the (MEARAMBINEER GO - KNE
Group is permitted fo exchange RMB for other currencies EEEBEBERBEETINERBORT
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange BARBLBREMBLEE-
business.
TRADE PAYABLES 26. H 5 A IE

Trade payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
are normally setled in 90 days. An aged analysis of trade
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

EoRNFREASEER 28 —KR
QOBRBEMN -REBXZRH EHEN
REWREDTT

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARET T

0 to 60 days 0Z60H 37,072 7,453
61 to 120 days 61&120H - 1,893
121 to 180 days 121£2180H - -
Over 180 days 180H LA & 177 6,596
37,249 15,942

The average credit terms granted by the suppliers of the
Group up to 90 days.

Trade payables with the amounts of approximately

RMB122,000 (2021: RMB24,000) were denominated in
GBP.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if #% 3k 2% B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. B AR
Minimum lease Minimum lease
payments payments
BIEHESEHE BIEHEEFHIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Within one year —F A 91 87
More than one year but less than —FALEMEFEUAR
two years - 83
91 170
Amounts due for setflement within one year 7 — 4 A 45 & ) 518
(shown under current liabilities) (RARBaEET2) 91 87
Amounts due for setflement affer one year R —F & EE K FIE
(shown under non-current liabilities) (RIERBHEBIETZE]) - 83
91 170
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to REE & & E B I T 1518 8 55K
lease liabilities is 1.98% (2021: 1.98%). R AE1.98% (20214 :1.98%) °
The balances were denominated in HK$ for both years. ZEERPNMEFEHAEITETE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %&x& Bl 55 ¥R 2% Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. FCAth A sk 0 K g R A

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR AREF T

Payables relating fo: BTN 5 % IR A B e N ROR
Taxes other than income tax I (FTEHRIRRIN) 2,621 2,230
Payroll and welfare TEREF 6,720 5,527
Contract liabilities aHadE 1,150 1,081
Accrued interest expenses FEET A B R X2 1,927 473
Accruals and other payables FEEH B A I H i FE 1 5RIB 19,405 10,658
31,823 19,969

Accruals and other payables mainly comprised of accrued
interest expense, legal and professional fee and utilities
expenses.

As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB94,000.

Confract liabilities represented advance payments received
from customers for sales of marble and related products
pursuant to the respective sales contracts before the confrol of
the products are passed to the customers.

Accruals and other payables with the amounts of
approximately RMB759,630 (2021: RMB4,283,000) and
RMB2,099,000 (2021: RMB299,000) are denominated in
HK$ and GBP respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 2022412431 H [EFE
29. AMOUNT DUETO A DIRECTOR

fm S Bl 35 ¥R B 53

29. MEAT#E S aK0H

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥Tx AREF T

Loan from a director (Note a) REEEMER (Hita) 991 4,748
Amount due to a director (Note b) N ZESFFIE (HiEb) 147 1,357
1,138 6,105

The amount due was denominated in HK$ for both years.

Notes:

(a) The loan from the Group's director, Mr. Zheng Yonghui, is unsecured,
interest bearing at 10% per annum and repayable within 1 year from
respective extension date or drawdown date as appropriate. The loan
will be matured on December 2023 (2021: September 2022).

(b) The amount due fo a director, Mr. Zheng Yonghui, is unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

30. OTHER LOANS

bt RS SRR MR B S E LB TTRTE ©

(o) REASEEEFLHKELENERBEER.
BEMEI0%5HE - ABEMAHHIRNAH
(BERME) BT —FREE - ZEEFTER
2023121 (20214 : 2022497 ) B # -

b) ENEFHKELENFALBER 282

AR ESREE

30. HAth &k

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T AR®EFIT

Creditor A (Note a) FERTBRRA (BT ita) 3,573 3,270
Creditor B (Note b) FERHBRFRB (A7aEb) - 3,863
Creditor C (Note ¢) JERBRFNC (M itc) 1,340 -
Creditor D (Note d) JERBRZD (M itd) 1,340 -
Creditor E (Note ¢) e BRRE (M ite) 1,340 -
Creditor F (Note f) FENBRFRF (742 F) 10,451 -
18,044 7,133

less: non-current portion B IETRENED (1,340) -
16,704 7,133

Other loans were denominated in HK$ for both years.

HEESAREZERERAF

Hip &N EFEHABTTEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&
30. OTHER LOANS (Continued)

Nofes:

(a) The loans are unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum and
repayable within 1 year from respective drawdown date. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the loans were further extended 2
years from the original drawdown date. The loans of RMB1,635,000
and RMB1,635,000 will be matured in January 2022 and February
2022 respectively. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
loans were further extended 1 year from the respective maturity date and
will be matured in January 2023 and February 2023.

(b) The loans are unsecured, inferest bearing at 10% and repayable after 1
year from respective drawdown date.

(c) The loan is unsecured, inferest bearing at 7% per annum, and repayment
after 2 years from respective drawdown date.

(d) The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 1% per month, and repayment
after 1 year from respective drawdown date.

(e) The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 1% per month, and repayment
after 1 year from respective drawdown date.

(f) The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 12% per annum, and
repayable on demand. The loan were obtained from family members of
Mr. Zheng Yonghui, a director of the Company.

31. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

@)  On 8 August 2018, the Company received a writ of
summons (the “Writ") issued in the Court of First Instance
of the High Court of Hong Kong under Commercial
List Action No. 5 of 2018 (the “Action”) by Mr. Li Jiaju
(the “"Plaintiff A") against Kinwin International Investment
Limited (the “1st Defendant”), a company wholly owned
by a former director, the Company (the “2nd Defendant”)
and the former director (the “3rd Defendant”), in relation
to a claim for the sum of approximately HK$23.7
million plus interest and cosfs against the 1st Defendant
or alternatfively, a claim for a sum of approximately
HK$21.2 million plus interest and costs against the
Company or alternatively a claim for the sum owned by
the 1st Defendant against the 3rd Defendant, pursuant
to a loan agreement between the Plaintiff A and the 1st
Defendant and an alleged deed of assignment that was
executed between the Plaintiff A, 1st Defendant, the 2nd
Defendant. The Company considered no provision made
for the case as this proceeding is sfill at its early stage
and the Company is highly unlikely to incur any further
liability as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 2022412431 H [EFE
31. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Coniinved)

(b

On 22 August 2018, the High Court of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region ("High Court”] handed
down o judgment to dismiss the application for
summary judgment from Zhongtai International Wealth
Management Limited (the “Plaintiff B") which is the
financier of Royal Moon for underwriting of open offer
announced by the Company on 14 May 2015, for
a claim that the Company is liable to account to the
Plaintiff B for wrongfully returning the balance of fund of
approximately HK$61.4 million from the open offer bank
account to Royal Moon on the ground of the alleged
breach of trust and/or breach of equitable/fiduciary
duties.

The Plaintiff B is claiming for equitable compensation
and/or damages, and/or account of profits on the
ground of the Company's breach of trust, together with
an order to pay to the Plaintiff B such sum as may be
found due or payable, including relevant interests and
costs. The Plaintiff B is also seeking for a declaration
that the Company is liable to account to the Plaintiff B
for the balance of the fund in the open offer account of
the Company or such other sum as the Court thinks fit on
the ground of its breach of trust.

The Company considered no provision made for the
case as this proceeding is sfill af its early stage and the
Company is highly unlikely to incur any further liability
as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

HEESAREZERERAF

==\
ik O

31.

Al 75 ¥R 2= Bl 5E

PREA T ()

(b]

201848 A228 BB R RIITH
BEEmEER (IREEKR]) TEH
REEHRRERELEMERAA
(TR&EZ]) (AR ARRAR2015
FORMARMZARABRERER
EAREES)NEHHRBE
FRELHRRARBARNRLFHEE
RITEPHRMAEAREESH
B#61,400,000% T i A R & 2
BrEFE BPHRBEBERERERS
FEREGFREEME-

REZLHAARARAEREXMRES
THER/RBEEHEE kXX
HABMNE YERRSINRE
LEBUREBRERNZEH BHEME
BANERER RELTFESRE
SEARARBRARBDARBEERP, 2
EefpEmMARE L8 LEEIR
RASREZEMERE HEARLAX
NAERER-

ARBRBRA AR B ADER R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81l #% ¥k 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

32. PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION 32. BERFAE
RMB'000
ARBT T
As at 1 January 2021, as at 31 December 2021, R2021F1 818 20214128318
as at 1 January 2022 and as at 31 December 2022 7202261 A1H k20224 12A31H 2,697
The Group is required to maoke payments for restoration and RARBERE AEEANRKEERE
rehabilitation of certain land after the sites have been mined. BETIH -BEDRBREHRBES
The provision is measured in accordance with the relevant EAZEBRAERAE -
rules and regulations applicable in the PRC af the end of the
reporting period.
33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. A
Number of Nominal values of
shares ordinary shares
Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 BREME0.2E T (2021F:
(2021: HK$0.01) each 0.018%) 2EER R 8 E EBREE
‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
T’ TERT ARBTR
Authorised: EE
As at 1 January 2021, as at 31 December 2021 ®2021F1A18 - R20215F
and as at 1 January 2022 12A31BRR202261A1H 150,000,000 1,500,000
Share consolidation (Note/ Bip &6 (Ht) (142,500,000) -
As at 31 December 2022 RW2022F12A318 7,500,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
As at T January 2021, as af 31 December 2021 7202151 A1H R20215
and as at 1 January 2022 12A31B k20221 R 1R 2,832,083 28,321 24,435
Share consolidation [Note/ WA (f12) (2,690,479) - -
As at 31 December 2022 RW2022%12A31R 141,604 28,321 24,435
At a extraordinary general meeting of the Company held R2022F12A19B BT AR AR
on 19 December 2022, an ordinary resolution was passed FRAGRE-—BHEBREFR HERK
to approve the share consolidation of every twenty issued ARRB - +TREBREECOIETZ
and unissued existing shares of HK$0.01 each into one EBTRRBTRARGEH AR K
consolidated share of HK$0.2 each of the Company (the BREEOC2ETZEMHKG (T4 MR
"Consolidated Share”). The share consolidated were effected 7]) B AEBHER2022F12A21H
on 21 December 2022. R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if #% 3k 2% B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

34. RESERVES 34. ffEf

Contributed reserve

It represents the aggregate amount of the consideration of
RMB24,480,000 paid to the former owners of Sichuan
Jinshida by the ultimate controlling shareholder to obtain
the control over Sichuan Jinshida by 14 March 2008 after
nefting off the investment cost of RMB10,000,000 paid by
the Group on the acquisition of the entire equity inferest in
Sichuan Jinshida from the ultimate controlling shareholder
pursuant to the reorganisation, as if the acquisition had
been completed from the beginning of the year ended 31
December 2010. The corresponding liability of the investment
cost of RMB10,000,000 payable fo the ultimate controlling
shareholder arising from the acquisition pursuant to the
reorganisafion was classified as a current liability as af 31
December 2009 and the balance was seftled in November

2010.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the fair value of services
estimated to be received in exchange for the grant of the
relevant share options over the relevant vesting periods, the
total of which is based on the fair value of the share options
at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by
spreading the fair value of the share options over the relevant
vesting period (if any) and is recognised with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve.

Foreign currency translation reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange
differences relating to the translation of the net assets of the
Group's foreign operations from their functional currencies
to the Group's presentation currency (i.e. RMB) which are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. Such
exchange differences accumulated in the foreign currency
franslation reserve are reclassified to accumulated losses on
the disposal of the foreign operations.

HE S AREERARA T

BB
BARBESEKRERBERANGYH T
NI & B 3 /O 4% il # M R 200843 A 14
BATROIERFENRNERANHNR
REARM24,480,0007T * & M K &K
SERRBEEARNRKERBRRKED
NekE2PRER S NOREKREA
E#®¥10,000,000 Bl EEED
REZE2010F12A831B IEF EHBE
TR-ARBEAETHRESZTEMEL
MENREERRRREXNEAARY
10,000,000t ® 48 & & & 2 X 20094
12A3VBE DB ARBAE MEEHE
R2010F 11 AEE -

BRERE
BEERFHEERNEEEBHA SRR
HARMBRED G BERRZRE 22
RE-HBEDREBRERELA S
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BREZAOABEREREES (WE)R
By BT W R AR AR A R SR AR R
KB

IR E A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81l #% ¥k 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. B RESTE

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24 January
2011 [the "2011 Option Scheme”), which was terminated
on 29 June 2020. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 29 June 2020, a
new share option scheme (the "2020 Option Scheme”)
was adopted. The Company’s 2020 Option Scheme for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees. Under the 2020 Option Scheme, the
directors may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, fo subscribe
for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company may,
from time to time, grant share options to outside third parties
for seflement in respect of goods or services provided to the
Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the 2011 Option Scheme was approximately
12,990,000 (2021: 260,165,000), representing 9.2%
(2021: 9.2%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date. The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue af any point in
fime, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted fo exceed 1% of the shares
of the Compony in issue at any point in fime, without prior
approval from the Company's shareholders. Options granted
fo substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or
with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company's shareholders.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinved) 35. BEBEREEEH] ()
Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the Rz Bk ARR L B HRT28H A
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options WEARARSOBREIMNIET-B
may be exercised at any time from the dafe of grant of the PR R R B B AR B F E A B
share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. The BRTE -TTEERRAAREFTETE
exercise price is deftermined by the directors of the Company, TERERATESE: (| AR ARMRE
and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price B EBWTE: (| AR AROREER
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii] the R BRI RS X B KT E : Kliii)
average closing price of the shares for the five business days AR R IR BV E(E
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii] the nominal

value of the Company’s share.

2011 Option Scheme PINRES 3¢
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
2022128318 20214124318
Weighted Weighted
average exercise Number of  average exercise Number of
price per share options price per share options
sRME S
FHTRE BREZE FHITEE ElRESRE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T BT Th
Outstanding at the beginning of R EBIRITE
ihe reporting period 0.20 260,165 0.25 263,248
lapsed during the year FERRB 1.63 (346) 4.4] (3,083
Adjustment during the year FERHE - (246,829) - -
Outstanding af the end of the reporting period RREARKITE 4.01 12,990 0.20 260,165
Exercisable af the end of the reporting period RBRERARATE 4.01 12,990 0.20 260,165
The options outstanding at the end of the reporting period P & B R (R R 17 {5 B9 B AR Y 0 T
have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.72 AR ENH RS 729 (2021F:6.72
years (2021: 6.72 years) and the exercise prices range FIRTEENF1.9448 T E34.740
from HK$1.944 1o HK$34.740 (2021: HK$0.0972 to BT (20214 :0.09728 Tt E1.7370
HK$1.7370). HBIT) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinued) 35. JE B AE R E (o)
The exercise price and exercise period of those share 2022128318 k2021 12A31
options outstanding under the 2011 Option Scheme as at B 201 1 FERETEIBETHARITER
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows: B RE B TTIE B M ITE AN T -
Exercise
Number of  price per
options share  Exercise period
BREBE SKRITEE THEB
‘000 HK$
T BT
As at 31 December 2022 173 32.740  From @ June 2014 to 8 June 2024
M2022412A31H B20145F69R R E202456H8H Ik

147 32.740  From 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024
B2014F6A268BE2024F6H258 1E

156 32.680 From 19 December 2014 to 18 December
2024 692,665 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2014
and 2,424,329 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2015.

B2014F 1231988 E2024F12H18H Lt

BHB692 66515 BRI R2014F 128
19 8k 2187718 - RIXH 92,424,329 8
[ #ER] PA2015F 12 19K 2B 1TfF -

242 32.980  From 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
B2015F1 1288 E2024% 12158 1k

2,360 1.994  From 23 November 2017 to 22 November
2027
B2017%11 23R E202/7F11H228 1t

9,912 2.344  From 15 April 2019 to 14 April 2029
B2019F4 15 £ E2029F4 148 1b
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinued) 35. MERREGTHE] (o)
Exercise
Number of  price per
options share  Exercise period
BREHE SRITEE 1TEH
‘000 HK$
F15 BETT
As at 31 December 2021 3,290 1.74  From 9 June 2014 to 8 June 2024
M2021F12H431H B201456 AR E2024F6HA8H b
3,464 1.74  From 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024

B20145F6H26A 2202462508 1k

3,117 1.63  From 19 December 2014 to 18 December
2024 692,665 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2014
and 2,424,329 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2015.

BH2014F 1231988 E2024F12H18H Lt

B HB692 665175 BRI 20149128
198 27T RIFHE2,424,3201 8
BRI 2015 12198 K 2 18771 -

4,848 1.65  From 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
H2015F1 41288 E2024F 128158 1

47,200 0.0972  From 23 November 2017 to 22 November
2027
B2017%11 A23HRE202/F11H228 1t

198,246 0.1172  From 15 April 2019 to 14 April 2029
H2019F4 8150 E2020F4 3148 1+
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Coniinved 35. WM AERT # cx)
The exercise prices and numbers of share options have been HREABEAR BERENTEERHED
adjusted with effect from 21 December 2022 due to the E A% - B2022F 1221 HBERK -

capital reorganisation.

No share option granted, forfeited, exercised or expired HZE20228 R2021F12A31HILFE -
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. BEBREERD BRI ETREHAE
fiE i
No share option was granted under 2020 Option Scheme for R EFER SERE2020F B E T
both years. IR LA
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. HA K
The Group had outstanding commitments as follows: REEHEAERBITAENT
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARET T
Contracted but not provided for: EENEREE:
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE WENLRE
equipment - 8,830
Construction of property, plant and BEME BENRE
equipment - 6,800
- 15,630
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BT & 5
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the GBI R REMI DTG &I KE
Group had the following significant related party transactions: BUTEREBAIRS:
(a) Key management compensation (o) TEEBAEME
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARET T
Salaries, wages and benefits in kind o ILEREYMHE 2,468 2,085
Retirement benefits scheme contribution 3R /K48 F 5+ &I 5% 15 15
2,483 2,100

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
defermined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market frends.

EEREBEITHAB Z % B d 3 B
ZEEREERAARALT LB
BEE-

(b) Related parties transactions (b) BELE XS
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARET T
Interest on loan from a director BERERAE 347 442
Interest on loan from family member —RERERGKEERD
of a director PN 1,181 -
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EHRBAEERS M EER

Details of the balances with related parties at the end of
the reporting period are sef out in Notes 29 and 30 fo
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

HEESAREZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AT BRI

THE COMPANY

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBEFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B RARIMIEE 9 8
Right-of-use assets EREEE 204 318
213 326
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayment, deposits and other FERFRIR - & Ko Ho A R W SR IR
receivables 229 636
Amounts due from subsidiaries I NGIE 514 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREeEEY 1,841 3,879
2,584 4,515
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
lease liabilities HEAE 91 87
Other payables and accruals H A S /IR N fEET B A 8,314 5,039
Amount due fo a subsidiary JRE A~ BT /B8 2 B RRIA 9 8
Amount due to a director EMEERE 1,138 6,105
Other loans B ER 16,704 7,133
26,256 18,372
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEBEFE (23,672) (13,857)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERABAE
LIABILITIES (23,459) (13,531)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAE
Other loans HaER 1,340 -
Llease liabilities HEAE - 83
NET LIABILITIES EEFHE (24,799) (13,614)
EQUITY E=
Share capital &% 72 24,435 24,435
Reserves (Note) i (M) (49,234) (38,049)
TOTAL EQUITY MR (24,799) (13,614)

Signed on its behalf of the board of directors by: HTIIEERREFERF:

Zhang Cuiwei Zhang Weijun
RER REE
Director Director

=% o=
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B £20226 1231 B L&

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. ARATMBIRIE =)
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Hat -
Reserve movement of the Company ZNNGIL b

Foreign currency

Share Share option translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BB E BRERE IHRERE 2HER By
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARBTFT ARETT ARETT

As af 1 January 2021 #0211 818 221,144 36,069 32,266 (327,280) (37,801)
Tofal comprehensive loss FETHERER

for the year - - 393 (641) (248)
lapsed of share options BREXK - (18,598) - 18,598 -

As at 31 December 2021 and ~ #2021F12A31H K&

os o 1 Janvary 2022 #2020%1 818 221,144 17,471 32,659 (309,323 (38,049)
Total comprehensive [loss)/income  FE 2T (1) /IE

for the year Fak - - (44,093 32,908 (11,185)
lapsed of share options BIRERY = (142) = 142 -
As ot 31 December 2022 #2022%12831 A 221,144 17,329 (11,434) (276,273 149,234)
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Al FE S RHk

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND A IR AR S H At 2 W A R
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194 20204 20214 20224
RMB'OOO  RMB'O0O0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBETIT AREBETT ARBETIT AREBETT AR®TR

Revenue A 67,719 65,689 72,765 74,247 72,289
Loss before tax T A S 18 (19,270) (68,505) (30,449) 49,732) (60,758
Income fax expenses FriS Bl - - - (610) (1,126)
Loss for the year FEER (19,270) (68,505) (30,449) (50,342) (61,884)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL R B AR DL
POSITION
As at 31 December
MW12B318
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

20184 2019% 20204 20214 2022%F
RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARBTE AR®TI AR¥TR

Non-current assets ERBEE 285092 275684 267,175 230,689 202,293
Current assets TEEE 141,052 112,527 87,677 82877 89,950
Total assets BEE 427,044 388,211 354,852 313,566 292,243
Current liabilities mEAaE 22,511 36,341 38,283 49 236 87,005
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 3,305 4,346 3,484 2,780 4,037
Total liabilities FEN=R 25816 40,687 41,767 52,016 91,042
Net assets/total equity FEE/ B 401,228 347,524 313,085 261,550 201,201
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